
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 

 Please reply to:  
 Contact: Karen Wyeth 
 Service: Committee Services 
 Direct Line: 01784 446341 
 E-mail: k.wyeth@spelthorne.gov.uk 
 Date: 19 April 2022 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Planning Committee 
 
 
Date: 
 

Wednesday, 27 April 2022 

Time: 
 

7.00 pm 

Place: 
 

Council Chamber 

 
To the members of the Planning Committee 
 
Councillors: 
 
T. Lagden (Chairman) 
R.A. Smith-Ainsley (Vice-
Chairman) 
C. Bateson 
A. Brar 
S. Buttar 
 

R. Chandler 
J.T.F. Doran 
N.J. Gething 
M. Gibson 
H. Harvey 
 

R.W. Sider BEM 
B.B. Spoor 
J. Vinson 
 

 
Substitute Members: Councillors S.M. Doran, S.A. Dunn, L. E. Nichols, O. Rybinski, 

J.R. Sexton and V. Siva 
 
Councillors are reminded that the Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book will be available 
outside the meeting room for you to record any gifts or hospitality offered to you since the last 
Committee meeting. 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 

 

Agenda 
 
 Page nos. 
 
1.   Apologies 

 
 

 To receive any apologies for non-attendance. 
 

 

2.   Minutes 
 

5 - 8 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 30 March as a correct 
record. 
 

 

3.   Disclosures of Interest 
 

 

 To receive any disclosures of interest from councillors under the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, or contact with applicants/objectors 
under the Planning Code. 
 

 

 Planning Applications and other Development Control matters  

 To consider and determine the planning applications and other 
development control matters detailed in the reports listed below. 
 

 

4.   Planning application 21/01801/FUL - Sunbury Cross Ex-Services 
Association Club, Crossways, Sunbury-on-Thames, TW16 7BG 
 

9 - 52 

 Ward 
Sunbury Common 
 
Proposal 
Demolition of existing Sunbury Ex-Servicemen’s Association Club and 
redevelopment of site including the erection of two residential buildings 
of 5-storeys and 8-storeys comprising 47 flats with associated car 
parking, cycle storage, landscaping and other associated works. 
 
Recommendation 
This application is recommended for approval subject to the prior 
completion of a Section 106 agreement. 
 
 

 

5.   Planning application 20/01555/FUL - Land to the north of 
Hanworth Road (Lok'n'Store and Johnson & Johnson 
 

53 - 80 

 Ward 
Sunbury Common 
 
Proposal 
Demolition of existing buildings and structures and redevelopment of 
the site to include the erection of two new commercial buildings. Unit 1 
to be Class B8 use and Unit 2 to be for flexible use within Classes B2, 
B8 and/or light industrial (Class E). A revised junction layout (A316 slip 

 



 

lane) and associated parking, servicing, landscaping and access and 
infrastructure works. 
 
Recommendation 
This application is recommended for approval subject to conditions, as 
set out in Section 8 of the report. 
 
 

6.   Majors report 
 

81 - 84 

 To note the details of future major planning applications. 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Minutes of the Planning Committee 
30 March 2022 

 
 

Present: 

Councillor T. Lagden (Chairman) 
Councillor R.A. Smith-Ainsley (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillors: 
 

C. Bateson 

S. Buttar 

J.T.F. Doran 

 

M. Gibson 

R.W. Sider BEM 

B.B. Spoor 

 

J. Vinson 

 

  

Apologies: Councillors A. Brar, N.J. Gething and H. Harvey 

 
 

In Attendance: Councillors M. Beecher and J. Button 

 
 

21/22   Minutes  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2022 were approved as a correct 
record. 
 

22/22   Disclosures of Interest  
 

a) Disclosures of interest under the Members’ Code of Conduct 
 
There were none. 
 
b) Declarations of interest under the Council’s Planning Code 
 
Councillors R Smith Ainsley, C Bateson, S Buttar, M Gibson, R W Sider BEM 
and J Vinson reported that they had received correspondence in relation to 
the application but had maintained an impartial role, had not expressed any 
views and had kept an open mind. 
 

23/22   Local Listing of the former Debenhams Building, Thames Street, 
Staines-upon-Thames  
 

Description: Local listing of the former Debenhams Building, Thames Street, 
Staines-upon-Thames. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
Planning Committee, 30 March 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

 
Additional Information: 
There was none. 
 
Public Speaking:  
In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, Richard 
West of Cerda Planning spoke against the proposed local listing of the former 
Debenhams Building, raising the following key points: 
 

- Local listing exercises carried out by the Council in 2004 and 2016 
found the building not to be worthy of inclusion on the list. 

- History of building is not significant or important from a heritage 
perspective. 

- Buildings built after 1950 can be included in the listing if they have 
sufficient indisputable qualities; the Council’s assessment does not 
provide evidence of this. 

- The officer’s report states that the building is not architecturally or 
historically of exceptional quality. 

- No regard was given to the adverse impacts of the unattractive 
appearance of the south and east elevations. 

- The emerging Local Plan considers the site suitable for redevelopment. 
- The building does not lend itself to conversion to provide high quality 

residential development. 
- Failure to redevelop the site would prohibit delivery of much needed 

homes. 
 

In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, 
Kathleen Healey spoke for the proposed local listing of the former 
Debenhams Building, raising the following key points: 
 

- The Debenhams building was designed by George Coles, one of the 
most renowned architects of the 20th Century and was his final work. 

- The building sits within a conservation area which gives Staines a 
sense of grandeur and prestige. 

- Towns that are able to save their heritage buildings are now perceived 
as more desirable and prestigious. 

- Historic England, The Twentieth Century Society and SAVE all object 
to the planning application. 

- The Twentieth Century Society and SAVE urge for the retention and 
repurposing of the current building. 

- The loss of this high quality building which is sympathetic to and 
enhances the conservation area would be sorely felt. 

- Residents are looking to Councillors to protect the Staines Town’s 
heritage and its future appeal and success. 

 
In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, 
Councillor M Beecher spoke as Ward Councillor for the proposed local listing  
of the former Debenhams building, raising the following key points: 

- The building does not overwhelm the High Street and it well positioned 
- It is an iconic building within Staines 

Page 6



 
Planning Committee, 30 March 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

- Historic England stated that it did not meet the criteria to place it on the 
national list but that did not exclude it from the local listing 

- Residents in Staines consider the building to be a focal point within the 
town. 

 
 
Debate: 
During the debate the following key issues were raised: 
 

- Large number of small elements make this building suitable to be 
placed on the Local List, not any one major element 

- Historic England’s decision not to put the building on the National List 
should not preclude it from the Local List 

- Landmark building within Staines 
- The building is curved to match Thames Street 
- Staines conversation area is nearby 
- Other buildings designed by George Coles in the country have been 

listed 
- Decorative façade and strong local character 
- Iconic status within Staines due to the design 
- Concerns about why this had not been considered for local listing 

previously 
- Local listing would not prevent the building from being demolished 

 
Decision: 
 
For: 8 
Against - 0 
Abstain: 1 
 
The Committee resolved to add the Debenhams building to the Local List of 
Buildings and Structures of Architectural or Historic Interest with immediate 
effect was agreed as per the recommendation. 
 

24/22   Local Planning Enforcement Policy Updates  
 

The Committee considered a report from Liz McNulty, Planning Enforcement 
Officer that outlined the new Local Planning Enforcement Policy that was 
adopted by the Neighbourhood Services Committee on 03 March 2022. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the report. 
 

25/22   Planning Appeals Report  
 

The Chairman informed the Committee that if any Member had any detailed 
queries regarding the report on Appeals lodged and decisions received since 
the last meeting, they should contact the Planning Development Manager.  
 

Page 7



 
Planning Committee, 30 March 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

Resolved that the report of the Planning Development Manager be received 
and noted. 
 

26/22   Major Applications Report  
 

The Planning Development Manager submitted a report outlining major 
applications that may be brought before the Planning Committee for 
determination. 
 
Resolved that the report of the Planning Development Manager be received 
and noted. 
 

Page 8



Cross

Sunbury Common

Centre

8
2

6
7

1

Elm

Ashton Lodge

STAINES ROAD WEST

Staines Reservoirs Aqueduct

12

Club

13
a

M 3

ESS

Fire Station

Sycamore Lodge

TCBs

Sinks

MP 17.0

Play Area

Li
m

e 
Lo

dg
e

Lodge

Willow

El Sub Stas

A
sh

 L
od

ge

PC

F
O

R
E

S
T

 D
R

IV
E

11

C
R

O
S

S
W

A
Y

S

9a
6/

7/
9

45 to 49

1 to 63

16

13

1 
to

 7
8

61 to 73

126

59

95

14
a

3/
4

51
55

Multistorey

House

S1

S
3

ED & W
ard Bdy

Kempton Point

CR

7

13
7

1

1
12

6 12

6

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100024284. ¯Scale: 1:1,250

21/01801/FUL - Sunbury Cross Ex Services Assoc Club, Crossways,
Sunbury on Thames. TW16 7BG

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



40 128 16

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1:200

20

Proposed alterations
to existing crossover
To be conditioned - level 
changes to access for 
raised shared pedestrian 
priorty area

North

Peace garden
440sqm

20

10

4
1

25,000ltrs

8

c
yc

le
 s

to
re

cycle store

Lobby

Lobby

Below ground refuse storage units.
e.g. Sulo system

Block A
Block B

www.pendleton-assoc.com

Scale @ A1

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

Project number

Peter Pendleton & 
Associates
Upper Floors 97 Lower 
Marsh
London
SE1 7AB
0207 202 9001
0207 202 9002
info@pendleton-assoc.com

These drawings are for use 
in the planning process 
only.
All measurements should 
be checked on site. These 
plans should not be used 
for structural calculations or 
any other engineering 
purpose.

1 : 200

1
8

/1
1
/2

0
2

1
 1

2
:5

2
:5

8

Site layout

CROS

Sunbury Cross Ex Services
Association Club,

Crossways, Sunbury, TW16
7BB

Wider context drawing
pack

17-11-21

JH

JP

CROS-LON2-10
1 : 200
Site layout

1

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Scale@A3Checked by

Drawn by

Date

Project number

www.pendleton-assoc.com

Peter Pendleton & Associates
97 Lower Marsh
London SE1 7AB

REVISION: 

These drawings are for use in the planning process only.
All measurements should be checked on site. These plans 
should not be used for structural calculations or any other 
engineering purpose.

1 : 200

1
4
/0

3
/2

0
2
2
 1

6
:3

8
:3

4

Elevations South, East and West

CRO

Sunbury Cross Ex Services Association
Club, Crossways, Sunbury, TW16 7BB

Building A

14-03-22

JH

JP

CRO-PRa-13D

1 : 200
South

1 1 : 200
West

2 1 : 200
East

3

North

4
0

12
8

16

G
R

AP
HI

C
 S

C
AL

E:
 1

:2
00

20

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Scale@A3Checked by

Drawn by

Date

Project number

www.pendleton-assoc.com

Peter Pendleton & Associates
97 Lower Marsh
London SE1 7AB

REVISION: 

These drawings are for use in the planning process only.
All measurements should be checked on site. These plans 
should not be used for structural calculations or any other 
engineering purpose.

1 : 200

1
4
/0

3
/2

0
2
2
 1

6
:0

9
:1

7

Elevation South, West and East

CROS

Sunbury Cross Ex Services Association
Club, Crossways, Sunbury, TW16 7BB

Building B

14-03-22

JH

JP

CRO-PR2b-10D

1 : 200
South

1 1 : 200
West

2 1 : 200
East

3

4
0

12
8

16

G
R

AP
HI

C
 S

C
AL

E:
 1

:2
00

20

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Planning Committee 

27 April 2022  
 
 

Application No. 21/01801/FUL 

Site Address Sunbury Cross Ex-Services Association Club, Crossways, Sunbury-on-
Thames, TW16 7BG 

Applicant SUN EX-21Ltd 

Proposal Demolition of existing Sunbury Ex-Servicemen's Association Club and 
redevelopment of site including the erection of two residential buildings 
of 5-storeys and 8-storeys comprising 47 flats with associated car 
parking, cycle storage, landscaping and other associated works. 

Case Officer Paul Tomson/Vanya Popova 

Ward Sunbury Common 

Called-in N/A  

  

Application Dates 
Valid: 29/11/2021 Expiry: 28/02/2022 

Extension of agreed 
until 29 April 2022 

Executive 
Summary 

This planning application proposes the demolition of the existing 
clubhouse and the redevelopment of the site to include the erection of 
two residential buildings of 5-storeys and 8-storeys comprising 47 flats, 
with associated car-parking, cycle storage, landscaping and other 
associated works. 

This application has been submitted following the refusal of the previous 
application 20/01506/FUL comprising 69 units on the 29th April 2021. 
That particular application was refused on the grounds that it constituted 
an overdevelopment of the site and failed to make a positive contribution 
to the area and create a strong sense of place. It provided a poor 
standard of amenity to future occupiers. The level of car parking was 
considered insufficient. In addition, the proposal comprised more than 
30 ‘family sized dwellings’ (2-bed or more) and in the absence of a 
payment or completed legal agreement, the applicant had failed to 
comply with Policy CO3 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD in 
relation to the provision of open space to provide a children’s play area. 

The current proposal has been substantially reduced in scale compared 
to the refused scheme. The number of units has been lowered from 69 
to 47, and the number of buildings reduced from 3 to 2. As a 
consequence, the design and layout is more spacious and it is 
considered that the overdevelopment issues and reasons for refusal 
associated with the previous application have been overcome. As this 

Page 17



 
 

scheme proposes less than 30 family sized dwellings, the requirements 
of Policy CO3 to deliver on-site or off-site open space to provide a 
children’s play area are not applicable. 

The proposal will make an efficient use of brownfield land and provide 
much needed housing (including 17 no. affordable units – 36%), 
contributing to housing delivery in the Borough. In addition, the ‘tilted 
balance’ is applicable in this particular case. It is considered that there is 
no significant or demonstrable harm that would outweigh the benefits of 
the scheme. 

The application is recommended for approval subject to the prior 
completion of a Section 106 agreement. 

Recommended 
Decision 

 

Approve the application subject to a S106 agreement and conditions as 
set out at Section 9 of the Report. 

 

 MAIN REPORT 
1. Development Plan 

1.1 The following policies in the Council’s Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 
are considered relevant to this proposal: 

➢ Strategic Policy SP1: Location of Development  

➢ LO1 (Flooding) 

➢ SP2 (Housing Provision) 

➢ HO1 (Providing for New Housing Development) 

➢ HO3 (Affordable Housing) 

➢ HO4 (Housing Size and Type) 

➢ HO5 (Housing Density) 

➢ TC3 (Development in Ashford, Shepperton and Sunbury Cross 
Centres) 

➢ CO1 (Providing Community Facilities) 

➢ SP6 (Maintaining and Improving the Environment) 

➢ EN1 (Design of New Development) 

➢ EN3 (Air Quality) 

➢ EN8 (Protecting and Improving the Landscape and Biodiversity) 

➢ EN11 (Development and Noise) 

➢ EN15 (Development on Land Affected by Contamination) 

➢ SP7 (Climate Change and Transport) 

➢ CC1 (Renewable Energy, Energy Conservation and Sustainable 
Construction) 

➢ CC2 (Sustainable Travel) 

➢ CC3 (Parking Provision) 

Page 18



 
 

 
1.2 Also relevant are the following Supplementary Planning 

Documents/Guidance: 
 

- SPG on Parking Standards Updated 2011 
 

- SPD on Housing Size and Type 2012 
 
1.3 The advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

2021 is also relevant. 
 
1.4 The emerging plan is currently being prepared but at present carries 

negligible weight in any decision making. 
 
 

2. Relevant Planning History 

2.1 The site has the following planning history: 
 

Ref. No. Proposal Decision and 
Date 

SUN/OUT/5760/Z18 

 
The erection of 68 flats having 3 
habitable rooms each, and 60 
maisonettes having 4 habitable 
rooms each, together with a 
Community Centre, Club and car 
parking. 
 

Approved  
23/11/1972 

 

20/01506/FUL 

 
The demolition of existing Sunbury 
Ex-Servicemen's Association Club 
and re-development of the site 
including the erection of three 
residential buildings of 4-storey, 6-
storey and 9-storey comprising 69 
flats with associated car-parking, 
cycle storage, landscaping and other 
associated works. 
 

Refused 
29/04/2021 
Appeal lodged 
 

 

3. Background and Description of Proposed Scheme 

3.1 The application site comprises an area of 0.316 hectares and is occupied by a 
two storey building with associated car-parking and is formally known as the 
Sunbury Cross Ex-Services Association Club. According to the applicant the 
clubhouse closed doors in March 2020 and the building is currently empty. 
The site is situated on the southern end side of Crossways in Sunbury on 
Thames, a cul-de-sac road which main access is via Staines Road West. 
Immediately to the south of the site is the Staines Reservoirs Aqueduct, whilst 
further to the south is the Tesco superstore and its associated car-park which 
can be assessed at the end of Crossways (adjacent to the application site) via 
a pedestrian footbridge across the Aqueduct. The M3 motorway runs further 
south-east of the site. Opposite the Crossways road (east) is the entrance to 

Page 19



 
 

the Sunbury Cross Multi-storey car park. The western boundary adjoins an 
existing two storey building (Lodge Nursing Home) which comprises a 
residential care home. To the north of site is a 4 storey building comprising 
residential maisonettes including Oak Lodge and Sycamore Lodge. Further to 
the north are more flatted residential developments.  

3.2 In terms of planning constraints, the whole site is within the 1 in 1000 year 
flood zone (Flood Zone 2). It is adjacent to the designated Shopping and 
Employment Areas of Sunbury Cross as defined in the Local Plan. 
 

Background 

3.3 As indicated in the planning history section above, the previous planning 
application (ref. 20/01506/FUL) was refused by the Planning Committee on 28 
April 2021 (the application was recommended for refusal by the Planning 
Officers). 

3.4 The previous scheme proposed the demolition of the existing clubhouse and 
re-development of site comprising the erection of three residential buildings of 
4 9 storey (Building A), 6 storey (Building B) and 4 storey (Building C) 
comprising a total of 69 residential flats (33 x 1 bed, 25 x 2 beds and 11 x 3 
bedroom flats). Along with this, the scheme also proposed a total of 32 
parking spaces. 

3.5 The illustration below outlines the layout of Buildings A, B and C within the 
previous submission. 

 

3.6 The application was refused on the following grounds: 

1. The proposal is considered to constitute an overdevelopment of the site by 
virtue of: excessive housing density; cramped layout; poor outlook for the 
ground floor flats; domination of car parking and hardstanding and 
inadequate space for landscaping. Furthermore, the applicant has failed to 
provide sufficient evidence to demonstrate that adequate car parking 
provision is provided on the site. The development will fail to make a 
positive contribution to the character of the area, will not create a strong 
sense of place, and will provide a poor standard of amenity for future 
occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies EN1, HO5 and 
CC3 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 and Section 12 

Page 20



 
 

(Achieving Well Designed Places) of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019. 

2. In the absence of a payment or a completed legal agreement under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the applicant has 
failed to comply with Policy CO3 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 
2009 in relation to the provision of new on-site open space or a financial 
contribution  towards new off site provision or to improve existing sites to 
enhance their recreational value and capacity. 
 

The applicant has lodged an appeal against the refusal of planning 
permission to the Planning Inspectorate. A start letter has just been issued by 
the Planning Inspectorate and the appeal is now under consideration. 

 
Proposed scheme  

3.7 This resubmission proposal is for the demolition of the existing Sunbury Ex-
Servicemen's Association clubhouse and re-development of the site 
comprising the erection of two residential buildings of 8 storeys (Building A) 
and 5 storeys (Building B) to provide 47 flats (20 x 1 bed, 21 x 2 bed and 6 x 3 
bed). The development would be served by 43 parking spaces at a ratio of 
0.91 per unit as well as 66 cycle spaces. The development also proposes 
associated access, amenity space and landscaping. 

3.8 The development would be arranged across 2 blocks. Block A would be the 
largest block in the development comprising 8 storeys in height. It would 
contain 30 flats (19 x 2 bed and 11 x 1 bed) and would be situated to the east 
of the site. Block B would be situated towards west of the site and would be 5 
storeys in height. The proposed plans indicate that this block is designed to 
accommodate 17 flats (6 x 3 bed, 2 x 2 bed and 9 x 1 bed). 

3.9 Each of the units within both buildings above ground floor level would be 
served with its own external balcony.  The western elevation of Block B at 
ground floor level would have an undercroft parking area for 8 vehicles. The 
submitted plans also show that each of the two buildings will be providing 
communal roof terraces. At ground floor level, there will be a shared 
communal garden area between Block A and Block B (referred on the 
Proposed Layout plan as Peace Garden). An underground bin storage system 
has been proposed adjacent to the northern boundary of the site. The vehicle 
and pedestrian entrance to the site will be on the northern-east side leading 
into the Crossways.   
 

3.10 The illustration below outlines the layout of the site and the location of Blocks 
A and B. 

Page 21



 
 

 

 

3.11 The proposed mix and tenure is as the follows: 

Unit type PRIVATE AFFORDABLE 
Rented                Shared 

TOTAL 

One bed 11 6 3  20  

Two bed 19 2 0 21 

Three 
bed 

0 3 3 6 

                        30                  11                   6  47 

 

3.12 The applicant is proposing 36% of the units (17 units) as affordable and they 
will be located all in Block B.  
 

4. Consultations 

4.1 The following table shows those bodies consulted and their response. 

Consultee Comment 

County Highway Authority 
No objections. Conditions and 
informatives have been recommended.   

Environment Agency 
No objections. Refers to the standard 
advice. 

Highways England No objections. 

Lead Local Flood Authority 
(Surrey County Council) 

No objections. Conditions and 
informatives have been recommended.   

Environmental Health 
(Contaminated Land and 
Dust) 

No objections on contamination grounds. 
Subjects to conditions and informatives. 

Environmental Health (Air 
Quality) 

No objections, recommends conditions 
and informatives. 

Environmental Health (Noise) 
No objections, recommends conditions 
and informatives.  

Page 22



 
 

Surrey Wildlife Trust 

Originally raised concerns for insufficient 
information regarding bats. Following the 
submission of additional information, no 
objections on bats subject to conditions.  

Tree Officer No objections.  

BAA 
No objections, recommends an 
informative regarding cranes. 

Natural England No objections. Refers to standing advice. 

Thames Water 
No objections, recommends 
informatives. 

National Grid 
No comments have been received. Any 
updates will be reported verbally. 

Crime Prevention Officer 
A condition or informative should be 
imposed concerning the Secured by 
Design (SbD) Gold award. 

Surrey Fire & Rescue Service 
No objections, recommends 
informatives. 

Council’s Group Head, 
Community Well-being 

No objections.  

Environmental Services 
(Renewable Energy) 

The Sustainability Officer is satisfied that 
the renewable requirements will be met. 

Health and Safety Executive 

Originally raised concerns as a statutory 
consultee on Fire Safety for tall 
buildings.  After re-consultation on 
amended plans, there are now no 
objections 

Council’s Strategic Lead, 
Housing Options 

No objections.  

 

5. Public Consultation  

5.1 A total of 145 properties were notified of the planning application, a statutory 
site notice was displayed, and the application was advertised in the local 
press.   
 

5.2 A total of 17 letters of objection has been received commenting on the 
proposal including objections raised by Spelthorne Committee for Access 
Now (SCAN).  

 
Reasons for objecting include:- 

 
- Traffic 
- Too many flatted developments 
- More vehicles 
- Highway implications 
- Noise 
- Air pollution 

Page 23



 
 

- Over-development 
- Narrow road 
- Doctor surgeries are full 
- High density 
- Sunbury Ex Serviceman's Club was a much used local amenity for residents 

groups and other social activities 
- Loss of club 
- The site was sold without the members’ agreement 
- New club should be built 
- Insufficient parking 
- Parking stress within the nearby streets 
- Very limited consideration to disabled people (The layouts of flats, in 

particular entrance door arrangements, are not suitable for some disabled 
people, particularly wheelchair users) 

- Insufficient green space  
- Light Pollution 
- The crime rate is high 
- No consideration for the local community 
- Poor infrastructure 
- The site is not suitable for residential 
- Light commercial activities should be considered instead 
- Access issues (in and out) 
 

A representation has been made by Spelthorne Borough Council’s 
Community Safety Officer encouraging that the developer considers a new 
CCTV system to help reduce fear of crime and crime and disorder matters.   
This can be added as an informative to the decision notice in the event that 
the application is approved. 

 

6. Planning Issues 
 

➢ Principle/loss of club        
➢ Housing need                 
➢ Design and appearance    
➢ Housing density              
➢ Amenity space                    
➢ Impact on existing residential amenities  
➢ Parking/Highway issues 
➢ Renewable Energy    
➢ Affordable housing               
➢ Flooding                              
➢ Biodiversity                          

 
7. Planning Considerations 

 
Principle/Loss of Existing Club 

7.1 The site is located within the urban area and is occupied by the Ex-
Servicemen’s Club and its associated car park. The site adjoins existing 
residential development to the north, and a residential care home to the west. 
Consequently, the principle of creating a new residential development on the 

Page 24



 
 

site is considered acceptable subject to other planning issues being 
addressed. 

 
7.2 The site was identified as a proposed site allocation for housing in the 

Council’s Preferred Options Consultation Site Allocations document dated 
November 2019 (Regulation 18).  

 
7.3 It is important to stress that the new Local Plan is in its very early stages of 

preparation, indeed the Regulation 19 Local Plan has not been issued.  It is, 
therefore, yet to be subject to examination and consequently the weight given 
to the Preferred Options Consultation document is negligible.  

 
7.4 The proposal involves the loss of the existing Ex-Servicemen’s Club. Policy 

CO1 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 (CS & P DPD) states that 
the Council will seek to ensure community facilities are provided to meet local 
needs by resisting the loss of existing facilities except: (i) where it is 
demonstrated that the facility is no longer needed, or (ii) where it is 
established that the services provided by the facility can be provided in an 
alternative location or manner that is equally accessible to the community 
served. The supporting text to the policy refers to community facilities to 
include schools and other educational facilities, health and social care 
facilities, emergency services, advice centres, clubs, societies, places of 
worship, sport and leisure activities, youth facilities and community centres. 

7.5 It is considered that the Ex-Servicemen’s Club constitutes a community facility 
and that the requirements of Policy CO1 are applicable in this particular case. 
It is relevant to note that the Council has received several letters of 
representation from third parties raising the loss of the club as a reason for 
objection. For example, the letters state that the club was sold without 
consultation with its members and that there is an ongoing legal dispute. 

 
7.6 The loss of the existing club was accepted in the previous planning 

application 20/01506/FUL. Whilst that particular application was refused, the 
reasons for refusal did not relate to the loss of the club. It was accepted that 
the applicant had provided sufficient information to demonstrate that the club 
was no longer needed, and that the requirements of Policy CO1 (Providing 
Community Facilities) of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 (CS& P 
DPD) had been met. The club closed in March 2020 and the site is disused 
today. Consequently, the loss of the club continues to be acceptable. 
 
Housing Need 

7.7 When considering planning applications for housing, local planning authorities 
should have regard to the government’s requirement that they significantly 
boost the supply of housing and meet the full objectively assessed need for 
market and affordable housing in their housing area so far as is consistent 
policies set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021. 
 

7.8 The Council has embarked on a review of its Local Plan and acknowledges 
that the housing target in its Core Strategy and Policies DPD February 2009 
of 166 dwellings per annum is more than five years old and therefore the five 
year housing land supply should be measured against the area’s local 
housing need calculated using the Government’s standard method.  The 

Page 25



 
 

standard method for calculating housing need is based on the 2014 
household growth projections and local affordability. This equates to a need of 
611 dwellings per annum in Spelthorne. This figure forms the basis for 
calculating the five-year supply of deliverable sites.  

 
7.9 The NPPF requires a local authority to demonstrate a full five year supply of 

deliverable sites at all times.  For this reason, the base date for this 
assessment is the start of the current year 1 April 2021, but the full five year 
time period runs from the end of the current year, that is, 1 April 2022 to 31 
March 2027. The 20% buffer will therefore be applied to this full period. 
National guidance sets out that the buffer should comprise sites moved 
forward from later in the plan period. A 20% buffer applied to 611 results in a 
figure of 733 dwellings per annum, or 3666 over five years. 
 

7.10 In using the objectively assessed need figure of 733 as the starting point for 
the calculation of a five year supply it must be borne in mind that this does not 
represent a target as it is based on unconstrained need. Through the Local 
Plan review, the Borough’s housing supply will be assessed in light of the 
Borough’s constraints, which will be used to consider options for meeting 
need. The Council has now published its Strategic Land Availability 
Assessment (SLAA) which identifies potential sites for future housing 
development over the plan period.  
 

7.11 The sites identified in the SLAA as being deliverable within the first five years 
and subsequent updates from landowners have been used as the basis for a 
revised five year housing land supply figure. Spelthorne has identified sites to 
deliver approximately 3263 dwellings in the five year period.  
 

7.12 The effect of this increased requirement with the application of a 20% buffer is 
that the identified sites only represent a 4.79 year supply and accordingly the 
Council cannot at present demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable 
housing sites. There is, therefore, a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. 
 

7.13 Government guidance (NPPF para 74) requires the application of a 20% 
buffer “where there has been significant under delivery of housing over the 
previous three years”. In addition, guidance on the Housing Delivery Test 
indicates that where housing delivery falls below 85%, a buffer of 20% should 
be applied to the local authority’s five year land supply and a presumption in 
favour of sustainable development if the figure is below 75%. The Housing 
Delivery Test result for Spelthorne Borough Council was published by the 
Secretary of State in January 2022, with a score of 69%.  This means that 
less housing has been delivered when compared to need over the previous 
three years. As a consequence, there is a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development because the test score of 69% is less than the 75% 
specified in the regulations.  The figure of 69% compares with 50%, 60% and 
63% in the previous three years.  The Council’s Housing Delivery Test Action 
Plan will be updated to reflect this.  The current action plan positively 
responds to the challenge of increasing its housing delivery and sets out 
actions to improve delivery within the Borough. 

 

Page 26



 
 

7.14 As a result of the above position in Spelthorne relating to the 5 year housing 
land supply and the Housing Delivery Test result, current decisions on 
planning applications for most housing developments need to be based on 
the ‘tilted balance’ approach set out in paragraph 11 of the NPPF (2021). This 
requires that planning permission should be granted unless ‘any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a 
whole’.  

 
7.15 As a result, current decisions on planning applications for housing 

development need to be based on the ‘tilted balance’ approach set out in 
paragraph 11 of the NPPF (2021). This requires that planning permission 
should be granted unless ‘any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies 
in this Framework taken as a whole’. 

 
Design and Appearance 

7.17 Section 12 of the NPPF refers to design - Achieving well-designed places and 
in particular that the creation of high quality buildings and places is 
fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. It 
states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates 
better places in which to live and work and helps make development 
acceptable to communities. In paragraph 134 the NPPF states that, 
‘…Development that is not well designed should be refused, especially where 
it fails to reflect local design policies and government guidance on design, 
taking into account any local design guidance and supplementary planning 
documents which use visual tools such as design guides and codes. 
Conversely, significant weight should be given to: 

(a) development which reflects local design policies and government guidance 
on design, taking into account any local design guidance and supplementary 
planning documents which use visual tools such as design guides and codes; 
and/or 

(b) outstanding or innovative designs which promote high levels of 
sustainability, or help raise the standard of design more generally in an area, 
so long as they fit in with the overall form and layout of their surroundings’. 

7.18 The National Design Guide, Planning Practice Guidance for beautiful, 
enduring and successful places, produced by the MHCLG in 2021, addresses 
how we recognise well design places by outlining ten characteristics; context, 
identity, built form, movement, nature, public spaces, uses, homes and 
buildings, resources and life span.  

 
In para 51 when referring to identity it states that, ‘…Well-designed places, 
buildings and spaces:… have a character that suits the context, its history, 
how we live today and how we are likely to live in the future…’ 
 

  Other relevant paragraphs from the National Design Guide in relation to built 
form and home and buildings sections are noted below. 

 

Page 27



 
 

‘53 Well-designed new development is influenced by: 
 
■ an appreciation and understanding of vernacular, local or regional   

character, including existing built form, landscape and local architectural 
precedents; 

■ the characteristics of the existing built…’ 
 

‘66 Built form is determined by good urban design principles that combine 
layout, form and scale in a way that responds positively to the context. The 
appropriate density will result from the context, accessibility, the proposed 
building types, form and character of the development.’ 

 
‘131 Well-designed shared amenity spaces feel safe and secure for their 
users. They are social spaces providing opportunities for comfort, relaxation 
and stimulation - including play - for residents, regardless of the type or tenure 
of homes. They are well overlooked and all of the residents who share them 
can access them easily.’ 
 
‘132 Private amenity spaces including both gardens and balconies enhance 
visual and outdoor amenity. They can also provide a degree of privacy and 
separation for living areas from adjoining public space. Front gardens may 
incorporate planting to add to natural features within the public space.’ 

 
7.19 Policy EN1(a) of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will require a high 

standard of design and layout of new development. Proposals for new 
development should demonstrate that they will create buildings and places 
that are attractive with their own distinct identity; they should respect and 
make a positive contribution to the street scene and the character of the area 
in which they are situated, paying due regard to the scale, height, proportions, 
building lines layout, materials and other characteristics of adjoining buildings 
and land. 

7.20 The site has an edge of centre location within the urban area. The Sunbury 
Cross Shopping Centre and designated Employment Area is located on the 
eastern side of Crossways. To the north of the site is the relatively high 
density development of Forest Drive (the blocks known as Oak Lodge and 
Sycamore Lodge are nearest to the site), which comprise 4-storey blocks of 
maisonettes. The 4-storey flank elevation of 6 & 12 Oak Lodge immediately 
adjoins the northern boundary of the site. To the west is the 2-storey 
residential care home of Ashton Lodge. To the north-east, on the other site of 
Crossways is the multi-storey car park of the Sunbury Cross Centre. To the 
south of the site is the Thames Water aqueduct with the Tesco supermarket 
car park beyond. There is a footbridge over the aqueduct linking Crossways 
with the supermarket. 
 

7.21 The existing building on site has a tired and dated appearance. As noted 
above, the current application has been submitted in order to overcome the 
previous reasons for refusal. The previous scheme showed the three buildings 
in close proximity to the boundaries, which raised serious concerns due to the 
cramped layout, unacceptable overdevelopment and poor outlook in regards 
to the nearby ground floor flats. Furthermore, the proposed private terraces 
whilst serving as an acceptable buffer had narrow depths.  
 

Page 28



 
 

7.22 The current proposal has been substantially reduced in scale compared to the 
refused scheme comprising two buildings of 5 and 8 storeys instead of 
previously proposed three buildings in 4, 6 and 9 storey in height. 
Consequently, this has resulted the design and layout in more spacious 
character providing more opportunities for soft landscaping and ensuring 
sufficient distances from the nearby boundaries. The only significant area of 
space for landscaping at ground floor level within the refused scheme was 
between Block A and B in a form of a small children’s play area. Whilst the 
immediate neighbouring buildings are in 4 storey and 2 storey in height, there 
are taller buildings within the area (which vary in height) by and overall the 
proposed development is considered to integrate well within the surrounding 
area.   
 

7.23 Both Blocks of the proposal would contain ground floor apartments, each with 
main front door entrances on the eastern side of the buildings. Additional 
access entrances are provided on the western and southern sides.  The 
space between the blocks is shown as open with landscaped pedestrian 
routes which would contribute to a defined sense of place.  
 

7.24 The proposed materials indicate red multi brick with light and dark mortar join 
effects. In, this particular area the surrounding buildings are mainly faced in 
brickwork and it is considered that the proposed buildings would be keeping 
with the character of the surrounding area.  However, it is recommended that 
further details of the materials are secured by condition.   
 

7.25 It is considered that the current scheme in terms of its design, scale and 
location is acceptable and will integrate into the existing street scene and 
wider built form within the vicinity. The majority of parking has been provided 
to the western side, within the under croft part of the Block B building and 
some parking on the northern side (between the two buildings). The refused 
scheme was considered to create a much more built-up appearance with an 
over-dominance of hardstanding. The revised set back and set in, allows this 
part of the proposed buildings to appear less dominant and helps to break up 
the built form and width of the buildings. As such it enables space between 
the buildings and additional landscaping to soften its appearance. 
 

7.26 Paragraph 119 of the NNPF states that policies and decision should promote 
an effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while 
safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy 
living conditions… 

 

7.27 Paragraph 120 of the NPPF relates to optimising the site, noting that polices 
and decision should: - . 

‘(d) promote and support the development of under-utilised land and 
buildings, especially if this would help to meet identified needs for housing 
where land supply is constrained and available sites could be used more 
effectively….’  

7.28 The scheme is considered to optimise the use of the site by providing a 
residential use in a sustainable location on an unused, previously developed 
site and will integrate well with its surroundings. 

Page 29



 
 

 

7.29 The proposal is considered to comply with Policy EN1 on design and 
appearance and the guidance in the NPPF. 

 

Housing Density 

7.30 The NPPF encourages the optimisation of densities and states that Local 
Planning Authorities should refuse planning applications which they consider 
fail to make an efficient use of land. 

 
7.31 Policy HO5 of the CS & P DPD states that within higher density residential 

area, including those characterised by a significant proportion of flats and 
those containing significant Employment Areas, new development should 
generally be in the range of 40 – 75 dwellings per hectare. Higher density 
development may be acceptable where it is demonstrated that the 
development complies with Policy EN1 on design, particularly in terms of its 
compatibility with the character of the area and is in a location that is 
accessible by non car-based modes of travel. 

7.32 The site area is 0.316 hectares and the development would have a density of 
approximately 149 dwellings per hectare (dph). Immediately to the west is the 
two storey existing residential care home, whereas to the north is situated 4 
storey maisonettes with further flatted developments beyond that with much 
higher density.  The proposed housing density is much higher than the 
recommended density range of 40 – 75 dph specified in Policy HO5. 
However, Policy HO5 allows for higher density developments where a 
scheme complies with Policy EN1 on design, particularly in terms of its 
compatibility with the character of the area and is in a location that is 
accessible by non-car based modes of transport.  For the reasons highlighted 
above, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policy EN1 in 
design terms and a higher density is considered to be acceptable subject to 
its location being accessible.  This will be considered further below. 
 

7.33 The proposed density of 149 dwellings per hectare, considered to represent 
an acceptable optimisation of the site, in accordance with the objectives of the 
NPPF and policies EN1 and HO5.  

 
Amenity Space 

7.34 The Council’s SPD, Design of Residential Extension and New Residential 
Development (2011) provides general guidance on minimum garden sizes 
(Paragraph 4.20). In the case of flats it requires 35 square metres per unit for 
the first 5 units, 10 square metres for the next 5 units, and 5 square metres 
per unit thereafter.  

 
7.35 The proposed development would provide 530 m² amenity (garden) area at 

ground floor level between Block A and B. The proposed plans also indicate 
that both roofs of the buildings would incorporate a roof terrace fitted with 
planters, integrated seating, and composite decking. In addition, all 
apartments above ground floor level would be served by external balconies. 
On the basis of the above minimum guidance, there would be a requirement 
for the 47 apartments to be served by a minimum of 410m² of private amenity 
space.  When considered cumulatively with the balconies, the apartments 

Page 30



 
 

would be provided with amenity space that significantly exceeds the Council’s 
minimum requirements. 
 

7.36 The Council’s Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on the Design of 
Residential Extensions and New Residential Development (2011) sets out 
minimum floor space standards for new dwellings. 

7.37 The Government has also published national minimum dwelling size 
standards in their “Technical Housing Standards – nationally described space 
standard” document (2015). These largely reflect the London Housing Design 
Guide on which the Spelthorne standards were also based and are arranged 
in a similar manner to those in the Council’s SPD and are shown in the table 
below. The national document must be given substantial weight in 
consideration of the current application. 

 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 

National Space 
Standard 

39m2 (1 person) 
50m2 (2 people) 

61m2 (3 people) 
70m2 (4 people) 

 74m2 (4 people) 
86m2 (5 people) 
95m2 (6 people) 

Space proposed Between 40 m2 
1 person) 

and 66 m2 (2 
people) 

Between 61m2 

(3 people) and 
79m2 (4 people) 

Between 74m2 
and 79m2 (4 

people) 

 

7.38 The proposed dwelling sizes comply with the minimum standards stipulated in 
the national technical housing standards and the SPD, Therefore, it is 
considered their standard of amenity overall to be acceptable. 
 
Residential Amenity 

7.39 Policy EN1b of the CS & P DPD states that: 

“New development should achieve a satisfactory relationship to adjoining 
properties avoiding significant harmful impact in terms of loss of privacy, 
daylight or sunlight, or overbearing effect due to bulk and proximity or 
outlook.” 

7.40 Notwithstanding the fact that in an urban area such as this case, it would be 
expected that some level of over-looking could occur especially at the edge of 
town centre locations. The scale of the development and proximity to the 
boundaries with existing properties need to have an acceptable relationship 
and existing residential properties should not be significantly adversely 
affected by the proposal. The Council’s Supplementary Planning Document 
on the Design of Residential Extensions and New Residential Development 
2011 (SPD) sets out policies requirements in order to ensure this is the case. 

 
7.41 The SPD in para 3.6 acknowledges that ‘most developments will have some 

impact on neighbours, the aim should be to ensure that the amenity of 
adjoining occupiers is not significantly harmed.’ It sets out minimum 
separation distances for development to ensure that proposals do not create 
unacceptable levels of loss of light, be overbearing or cause loss of privacy or 
outlook. The LPA’s SPD on the Design of Residential Extensions and New 
Residential Development (April 2011), contains a ‘back-to-back’ guide, which 
states that there should be a minimum distance of 21 metres between the 

Page 31



 
 

rear elevations of two storey dwellings where the rear elevations are situated 
‘back-to-back’.  The SPD further states that there should be a minimum 
distance of 30 metres between the rear elevations of three storey dwellings.  
The SPD also contains a ‘back-to-side’ guide, which states that there should 
be a minimum distance of 13.5 metres between the side elevations and the 
rear elevations of two storey properties. This minimum distance increases to 
21 metres between the side and rear elevations of three storey buildings. 
However, there are no minimum separation distances for more than 3 storeys 
and it should be noted that this guide is aimed primarily towards ‘traditional 
suburban dwellings’ rather than high density development such as the one 
proposed. 

7.42 The recently refused scheme originally proposed the constructions of three 
buildings comprising 9 storey (located near the eastern boundary and directly 
facing the car-parking area of the nearby 4 storey flatted development), 6 
storey (middle building) and 4 storey (near the western boundary). It was 
considered that the proposal would have no material impact on privacy or 
daylight to the surrounding properties and that the Council’s 25 degree line 
would have been met.  

7.43 As already noted above, the current proposal has been substantially reduced 
in scale by removing a whole block comprising 12 flats and 4 storeys in 
height. In addition, the remaining 2 buildings have been proposed with 
reduced height comprising 8 storeys (building A) (previously proposed 9 
storeys) and 5 storeys (Building B) (previously proposed 6 storeys). Block A 
would be directly facing the car-parking area of the existing 4 storey flatted 
development to the north (Sycamore Lodge) which is situated approximately 
37.3 metres from the rear of the subject flatted development (angled view). 

7.44 The proposed Building B would be set back from the northern boundary by 
9.4 metres and  it will have a separation distance from the front to the back 
elevation of the Sycamore Lodge flats of 32.5 metres. The 2 storey care home 
situated on the western side of the scheme would be approximately 40 metres 
away from the flank elevation of the proposed 5 storey building (Block B). The 
southern elevation of the neighbouring flatted development Oak Lodge does 
not contain any windows. 

7.45 Given the distances outlined above, on balance, it is not considered the 
buildings will have an overbearing impact upon any surrounding units and is 
considered to have a satisfactory impact upon privacy.   
 
Daylight/sunlight 

7.46 At paragraph 125 c) the NPPF further states that Local Planning Authorities 
should refuse applications which they consider fail to make an efficient use of 
land.  In this context, when considering applications for new housing the 
NPPF states that authorities “should take a flexible approach in applying 
policies or guidance relating to daylight and sunlight, where they would 
otherwise inhibit making efficient use of a site (as long as the resulting 
scheme would provide acceptable living standards)”. 
 

7.47 The Council’s SPD on design contains a 25° guide, which is primarily aimed 
towards more traditional suburban style developments rather than higher 
density schemes such as the current proposal.  The purpose of the 25° guide 

Page 32



 
 

is to ensure that a significant view of the sky is not lost in the area to the front 
and rear of a property. 
 

7.48 The proposal will not cross the 25 degree line when drawn from a point at 2m 
above ground level from the rear elevation of Sycamore Lodge, which will 
ensure an appropriate level of daylight and a significant view of the sky is 
maintained, as set out in the SPD.  
 

7.49 The proposal is considered to have an acceptable relationship and therefore 
an acceptable impact on the amenity of existing neighbouring residential 
properties, conforming to the Design SPD and Policy EN1. 
 
Parking/Highway Issues 

7.50 Policy CC3 (Parking Provision) of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will 
require appropriate provision to be made for off-street parking in development 
proposals in accordance with its maximum parking standards.  

 
7.51 On 20 September 2011 the Council’s Cabinet agreed a ‘Position Statement’ 

on how Policy CC3 should now be interpreted in the light of the Government’s 
recent parking policy changes. The effect of this is that the Council will give 
little weight to the word ‘maximum’ in relation to residential development when 
applying Policy CC3 and its residential parking standards will generally be 
applied as minimum (maximum parking standards continue to be applicable in 
relation to commercial development). The supporting text to the Parking 
Standards stipulates a number of important exceptional situations where a 
reduction in parking will only be allowed. One of these situations includes 
town centre locations where the reduction in parking will be assessed against 
the distance from a "public transport node", frequency of public transport, 
availability of pedestrian and cycle routes, and the range and quality of 
facilities supportive of residential development within reasonable walking 
distance.  

 
7.52 It is relevant to note that the parking provision in the previous planning 

application (20/01506/FUL) was 32 spaces for 69 units with 12 vehicle 
charging spaces (6 fast electric vehicle charge socket and 8 with a power 
supply), representing a parking ratio of 0.46 spaces per dwelling. The Council 
considered that this disproportionately low level of parking for this location 
(and lack of evidence from the applicant to demonstrate that this would not 
add to the existing parking stress in the area) was an indication that the site 
was being overdeveloped to an unacceptable degree. 

7.53 The proposed parking provision with the current application is 43 spaces with 
20% of the spaces (8 spaces) fitted with a fast charge socket for electric 
vehicles, including the provision of 1 space dedicated to a car club vehicle. 
However, the Surrey County Councils ‘Vehicle, Cycle and Electric Vehicle 
Parking Guidance for New Development (November 2021)’ advice that there 
should be 1 electric socket per dwelling. This matter has been highlighted with 
applicant and it has now been agreed that the proposed scheme will comply 
with the subject requirement (1 electric socket per dwelling). A condition has 
been recommended.   
 

Page 33



 
 

7.54 The proposed 43 parking space would represent a parking ratio of 0.91 
spaces per unit (i.e., slightly below 1 space per flat).  This is below the 
Council’s Residential Parking Standard of 65 spaces for a scheme of this size 
(a shortfall of 22 spaces), although a significant improvement compared to the 
refused application. 
 

7.55 Whilst the proposed parking provision is below the Council’s Residential 
Parking Standards of 65, it is considered that there are not sufficient grounds 
to justify refusal on parking grounds. Unlike the previous application, the 
proposed parking level is not considered disproportionately low to indicate an 
unacceptable overdevelopment of the site. Although the site is not technically 
within a town centre, it is recognised it is situated close to the Sunbury Cross 
Shopping Centre on the other side of Crossways, and it is considered 
reasonable to allow some reduction in the parking standards in this particular 
case. The site is a very short walk from the shops and services in the Sunbury 
Cross Centre. It is also within walking distance of Sunbury Railway Station. 
Moreover, there are several bus routes within walking distance of the site. 
The County Highway Authority (CHA) was consulted on the planning 
application and has raised no objection to the proposed parking provision. 
The CHA has made the following comments on this issue: 
 

“The CHA is aware of resident's concerns that the proposed car parking 
provision is insufficient, and that this represents a notable reduction of the 
maximum standards recommended by Spelthorne Borough Council. 
However, the parking standards state that a reduction would be allowed for 
development located within one of the Borough’s 4 town centres defined in 
the Core Strategy and Policies DPD where public transport accessibility is 
generally high. As the site meets this location criteria {officer note – it is very 
close to the town centre}, a reduced parking provision can be considered to 
accord with the adopted local policy. 
 
The CHA acknowledges that where there is some excess parking demand, 
or where visitors arrive at the site by car, that parking could take place 
outside the site, however this is likely to take place within the adjacent multi-
storey car park which has ample capacity. Furthermore, double yellow line 
parking restrictions are currently in place throughout the length of 
Crossways, as well as along both carriageways of A308 Staines Road West, 
thereby preventing any on-street parking from occurring here and protecting 
users from any highway safety hazards. Indeed, the parking stress survey 
commissioned by the applicant demonstrates that there are no 'long term' 
parking opportunities within a 200 metre walk distance of the site (the 
industry standard catchment distance) for prospective residents of the 
development. 

              
7.56 With regard to the vehicle ownership levels from the 2011 Census, the CHA 

makes the following comments: 
 
This data indicates that the development is unlikely to generate a parking 
demand much greater than one vehicle per flat. It is also noted that a third of 
households similar to those of the proposed flats within the local area did not 
own a vehicle in 2011. Based on the percentages, the proposed 
development could give rise to a total of 40 - 47 vehicles (the higher figure 

Page 34



 
 

here using a robust scenario that 16.3% of households owned 3 cars or vans 
each). However, it is expected that the 43 car parking spaces would be 
allocated to certain flats and so prospective residents would need to be 
made aware by the developer if they are able to have a parking space before 
moving in. The CHA therefore considers that any future occupiers of the flats 
not allocated a parking space will have purposely chosen the development in 
acknowledgement of this and would not typically own a car, nor would place 
a high reliance on car ownership. 

 
Finally, the proposal includes the provision of a parking space to 
accommodate 1 car club vehicle. Car club vehicles provide an alternative to 
vehicle ownership for occupiers of the site who would infrequently need to 
travel in a private vehicle. Therefore, the proposed car club vehicle could 
consequently reduce parking demand generated by the site by allowing 
occupiers of the development, and residents from the wider community, to 

share a vehicle and optimise its usage. 

 
Given the above, it is the CHA's position that subject to the inclusion of the 
above conditions within any permission granted, no objections on Highway 
safety or capacity grounds would be raised.” 

 

Renewable Energy  

7.57 Policy CC1 of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will require residential 
development of one or more dwellings, and other development involving new 
building or extensions exceeding 100 square metres, to include measures to 
provide at least 10% of the development’s energy demand from on-site 
renewable energy sources unless it can be shown that it would seriously 
threaten the viability of the development.  

7.58 The applicant submitted an energy report which states that various energy 
measures have been incorporated into the design of the scheme, including a 
thermally efficient building fabric, low energy lighting throughout, and air-
source heat pumps.  
 

7.59 The Council’s Sustainability Officer was consulted and stated that he is 
satisfied that the renewable energy requirement would be met. It is 
recommended that this is secured by condition. 
 

Affordable Housing 

7.60 Policy HO3 of the CS & P DPD requires up to 50% of housing to be affordable 
where the development comprises 15 or more dwellings.  However, policies 
are out of date for the purposes of para 11(d) of the NPPF 2021 (i.e. the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development) if they have been 
overtaken by matters which have happened since the plan was adopted.  The 
NPPF 2021, refers to 10 dwellings as the minimum starting point for 
affordable dwellings rather than the 2009 local plan policy of 15 dwellings.  
Therefore given that the guidance in the NPPF is up to date and Spelthorne 
has an unmet need for affordable housing in the Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment (SHMA) 2019, it is considered that the 10 dwellings rather than 
15 dwellings should be used as the starting point for decision making.  The 
Council’s policy is to seek to maximise the contribution to affordable housing 

Page 35



 
 

provision from each site having regard to the individual circumstances and 
viability, including the availability of any housing grant or other subsidy, of 
development on the site. Negotiation is conducted on an ‘open book’ basis.  

 
7.61 The applicant has submitted details of the Vacant Building Credit (VBC) in 

relation to this particular application, which is a government policy intended to 
encourage housing development of previously developed land.  Para 64 of 
the NPPF states that to “to support the re-use of brownfield land, where 
vacant buildings are being reused or redeveloped, any affordable housing 
contribution due should be reduced by a proportionate amount “. The national 
Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) on planning obligations notes there is an 
incentive for brownfield development on sites containing vacant buildings. 
Where a vacant building is brought back into lawful use or is demolished to be 
replaced for a new building, the developer should be offered a financial credit 
equivalent to the existing gross floor space of relevant vacant buildings when 
the local planning authority calculates any affordable housing contribution 
which will be sought. Affordable housing contributions may be required for 
any increase in floor space. It also states that the existing floor space of a 
vacant building should be credited against that of the new development. For 
example, where a building with a gross floor space of 8,000 sq. is demolished 
as part of a proposed development with a gross floor space of 10,000 sq. m, 
any affordable housing contribution should be a fifth of what would normally 
be sought. 

  
7.62 The guidance comments that the VBC applies where the building has not 

been abandoned and that ‘The policy is intended to incentivise brownfield 

development including the reuse or redevelopment of empty or redundant 
buildings. In considering how the vacant building credit should apply in a 
particular development, local planning authorities should have regard to the 
intention of national policy. In doing so it may be appropriate for authorities to 
consider: - whether the building has been made vacant for the sole purpose of 
redevelopment -whether the building is covered by an extant or recently 
expired planning permission for the same or substantially the same 
development’. 

 
7.63 The guidance also states that the VBC applies to on-site affordable housing 

as well as financial contribution to offsite provision. ‘Abandonment’ follows the 

interpretation in general planning law and depends on factors such as the 
condition of the building, length of non-use, whether there has been any 
intervening use and evidence of the owners’ intentions. 
 

7.64 The existing club closed in March 2020 and has been vacant since that time. 
When the previous application (20/01506/FUL) was being considered, the 
applicant submitted a substantial level of information to demonstrate that the 
club was no longer viable and that it had closed for this reason. The existing 
club building has an existing floorspace figure of 1,059 sq.m. The proposed 
development has a total floorspace of 3,760 sq. m. The VBC is applied to the 
scheme by deducting the existing floorspace figure from the proposed 
floorspace total, thereby providing a remaining total of 2,701 sq.m. It is only 
this remaining floorspace total that is subject to the Council’s affordable 

Page 36



 
 

housing policy HO3, and the requirement that 50% of the proposed units 
should be affordable. 
 

7.65 Of the remaining proposed floorspace of 2,701 sq.m that is subject to Policy 
HO3, the applicant is proposing 1,411 sq. m. (52%) to be occupied by 
affordable housing units. These units are to be located entirely within Building 
B (the smaller 5-storey block) and will comprise a total of 17 units. In terms of 
tenure, 11 no. units (65%) are to be affordable rent, with the remaining 6 units 
(35%) to be occupied as intermediate housing. This proposed mix of housing 
complies with the requirement in Policy HO3 that at least 65% of the 
affordable housing is for rent. As more that 50% of the proposed units (after 
the VBC is applied) are to be affordable, and that the affordable rent tenure is 
65%, the proposal complies with Policy HO3 and is therefore acceptable. It is 
relevant to note that the Council’s Strategic Lead has raised no objection to 
the proposed affordable housing mix and units sizes (indeed, one of the 
rented units has been changed to a 2-bed at the request of the officer). 

 

Flooding 

7.66 The site is located within Flood Zone 2, which has between 1 in 100 year and 
1 in 1000 year chance of flooding. The applicant has submitted a Flood Risk 
Assessment as is required by Policy LO1 of the CS & P DPD. The principle of 
locating new residential development (‘defined as ‘a more vulnerable use’) in 
the relatively low risk Flood Zone 2 is acceptable. The Environment Agency 
was consulted but has made no  comment on the proposal due to the low 
flood risk nature of the development. 

7.67 With regard to the sustainable drainage scheme (SuDS), the applicant is 
proposing to install underground geo-cellular storage crates to create an 
attenuation space. The intention is also to provide permeable paving and 
rainwater harvesting butts. The Lead Local Flood Authority (SCC) was 
consulted and has raised no objection subject to the imposition of conditions. 

7.68 With regard to the Sequential Test, the NPPF states that the aim is to steer 
new development to areas with the lowest risk of flood. Development should 
not be allowed or permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate 
for the proposed development in areas with a lower risk of flooding. The 
strategic flood risk assessment [carried out by the local planning authority for 
strategic planning purposes] will provide the basis for applying the test. The 
sequential approach should be used in areas known to be at risk now or in the 
future from any form of flooding. 

7.69 A strategic flood risk assessment was carried out prior to the adoption of the 
current Local Plan in 2009 (although an Interim report was produced in 2018 
as an evidence base document to support the emerging new Local Plan). 
Studies of land availability for housing and employment showed that in 
Spelthorne land in Flood Zones 1 and 2 would be needed to meet housing 
and other needs over the Local Plan period (2009 – 2026) and therefore sites 
in either zone would be acceptable. There was, however, no housing case to 
use land in Flood Zone 3 for housing where risks couldn’t be overcome. At the 
time of the adoption of the current Local Plan, the housing need target was 
3,745 over the plan period, or 166 dwellings per year. However, that figure is 
now out of date and Spelthorne now has a housing need annual figure of 733 
units (including a 20% buffer).. Consequently, the need to building new 

Page 37



 
 

residential development in Flood Zones 1 and 2 is even greater than before 
and continues to be acceptable. 

7.70 On a site specific basis, the application site is located entirely within Flood 
Zone 2. There are no areas of the site within the even lower risk Flood Zone 
1. Consequently, there is no opportunity in this particular case to locate the 
new dwellings to areas of lower flood risk within the site. 

7.71 Accordingly, the application is considered acceptable on flooding grounds. 
 
Biodiversity 

7.72 The applicant has submitted a bat survey which confirms that there is no 
evidence of bat roosts within the existing clubhouse building. Consequently, 
Surrey Wildlife Trust raised no objection to the demolition of the building.  

 
7.73 The site is mainly laid with hardstanding and there is limited opportunities for 

biodiversity on the site at present. The proposal will introduce a substantial 
increase in landscaping on the site which should increase the level of 
biodiversity on the site, thereby achieving a net-gain. Conditions are to be 
imposed on the decision notice to ensure this is secured. The Surrey Wildlife 
Trust was consulted and has raised no objection subject to these measures 
being achieved. Accordingly, the impact on biodiversity is considered 
acceptable. 

 
Other Matters 

7.74 The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has raised no objection on air 
quality grounds subject to conditions. The applicant has submitted an Air 
Quality Assessment which recommends the installation of mechanical 
ventilation to the new units to address the air quality issues on the site (which 
can be controlled by condition). 
 

7.75 The Council’s Sustainability Officer has raised no objection to the proposed 
renewable energy facilities (air source heat pumps). 

 
7.76 As this scheme proposes less than 30 family sized dwellings, the 

requirements of Policy CO3 to deliver on-site or off-site open space to provide 
a children’s play area are not applicable in this particular scheme. 

 
7.77 The proposal complies with the requirements of Policy HO4 (Housing Size 

and Type) as at least 80% of the new units will be smaller dwellings (1 or 2 
bedroom in size). 

 
7.78 The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has raised no objection to the 

proposal on noise grounds. 
 
7.79 The Council’s Head of Neighbourhood Services has raised no objection to the 

proposed underground bin store and collection arrangements. 
 
7.80 It has recently come to the Local Planning Authority’s attention that there is a 

discrepancy between the red line boundary in the planning application and the 
red line of the site’s title deed from the Land Registry. In particular, the 
eastern boundary of the title deed plan does not extend as far towards 

Page 38



 
 

Crossways and it appears that part of the proposed landscaped amenity land 
and a section of Block A would not be within the control of the applicant 
(owned by the Sunbury Cross Shopping Centre). The applicant signed 
Certificate A as part of the planning application. However, the applicant has 
been made aware of this discrepancy and submitted a completed Certificate 
B on 21 March 2022 showing that the interested parties have now been 
notified.  

 

Equalities Act 2010 

7.81 This planning application has been considered in light of the Equality Act 
2010 and associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is 
required to have due regard to:  
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.  

 
7.82 The question in every case is whether the decision maker has in substance 

had due regard to the relevant statutory need, to see whether the duty has 
been performed. 
 

7.83 The Council’s obligation is to have due regard to the need to achieve these 
goals in making its decisions. Due regard means to have such regard as is 
appropriate in all the circumstances. 

 
7.84 The applicant states that 10% of the new housing is designed to be 

wheelchair accessible meeting Building Regulation M4(3) ‘wheelchair user 
dwellings’. The remainder will be ‘ accessible and adaptable dwellings’ 
meeting Building Regulations M4(2). 4 no. parking spaces are for disabled 
motorists. The NPPF defines people with disabilities as individuals that have a 
physical or mental impairment, which has substantial and long-term adverse 
effects on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities.  This can 
include but is not limited to people with ambulatory difficulties, blindness, 
learning difficulties, autism and mental health needs.  It is considered that it 
would be possible for individuals with disabilities to access the development.    
It is further considered that apart from a direct impact this proposal will have, 
there is also going to be an indirect impact on number of people who share 
other protected characteristics. This impact will arise/derive mainly from 
construction works and may affect to a various but not significant degree 
pedestrians. 

 

Human Rights Act 1998 

7.85 This planning application has been considered against the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 
 

7.86 Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made 
representations) have the right to a fair hearing and to this end full 
consideration will be given to their comments. 

Page 39



 
 

 
7.87 Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and 

family life and a right to the protection of property, i.e. peaceful enjoyment of 
one's possessions which could include a person's home, and other land and 
business assets. 

 
In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Spelthorne Local Plan 
and the NPPF and all material planning considerations, Officers have 
concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon the applicant/ objectors/ 
residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law 
and is justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by 
the approval of the application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the 
wider benefits of such a decision, is based upon the merits of the proposal, 
and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council under the 
Town & Country Planning Acts. 

 
7.88 In terms of the built form, it is not considered that the proposal would result in 

a significant loss of outlook, loss of light/overshadowing, be overbearing or 
cause loss of privacy to neighbouring residential properties or cause noise or 
light nuisance issues that would justify refusal of the proposal. In addition, it is 
also considered that the proposal would have an acceptable impact on uses 
and their users. It is acknowledged however, that the demolition of the 
existing commercial unit and the construction of the new buildings, would 
have an impact on nearby properties and uses. The adjoining residential flats 
and Nursing Home will be most affected by the demolition of the existing 
building. A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) is 
recommended by condition to ensure issues such as noise and dust are 
mitigated against to reduce the impacts. It is also noted that this will be for a 
limited period.  
 

Financial Considerations 

7.89 Under S155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016, Local Planning Authorities 
are now required to ensure that potential financial benefits of certain 
development proposals are made public when a Local Planning Authority is 
considering whether or not to grant planning permission for planning 
applications which are being determined by the Council’s Planning 
Committee. A financial benefit must be recorded regardless of whether it is 
material to the Local Planning Authority’s decision on a planning application, 
but planning officers are required to indicate their opinion as to whether the 
benefit is material to the application or not.  In consideration of S155 of the 
Housing and Planning Act 2016, the proposal is a CIL chargeable 
development and will generate a CIL Payment of approximately £121,570.   
This is a material consideration in the determination of this planning 
application. If the developer qualifies for social housing relief, the applicable 
proportion will be 100% exempt. 
 

7.90  The proposal will also generate a New Homes Bonus and Council Tax 
payments which are not material considerations in the determination of this 
proposal.  

 

Page 40



 
 

8. Legal Agreement 

8.1 The proposed affordable housing needs and car club will need to be are to be 
secured by way of a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 In the event that the S106 agreement is not 
completed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority, and in the event 
that the applicant does not agree a further extension of time to allow the 
completion of the legal agreement and issuing of the decision notice, the 
recommendation is to refuse planning permission.  The details are set out in 
the recommendation below. 

 
9.  Recommendation 

 
9.1 APPROVE subject to the following: 
 

9.2 (A) Subject to the applicant first entering into an appropriate legal agreement 
in respect of the following: 

1. To provide at least 17 affordable housing units (Rent: 6 no. 1-bed, 2 no. 
2-bed, 3 no 3-bed; Intermediate: 3 no. 1-bed, 3 no. 3-bed) on site built 
in accordance with current Homes and Communities Agency Scheme 
Development Standards, the details of which shall be agreed with the 
Council’s Planning Development Manager. 

• The split of the type of affordable housing shall be at least 11 for 
affordable rent and at least 6 dwellings for intermediate. 

• Within 6 months of commencement of development the Registered 
Provider (RP) shall enter into a Nominations Agreement in respect of 
the affordable housing (in order that the social housing meets local 
needs). 

• Build and complete the affordable units and hand over to the 
Registered Provider for occupation before more than 50% of the open 
market units are sold or substantially completed, whichever is the 
sooner.  

2. To provide the following sustainable transport measures: 

(a) Provision of one car club vehicle to be based in the proposed Car 
Club Parking Space, and to ensure that this vehicle is retained for a 
minimum of two years following first occupation of the site. 
 

(b) Provide the first occupants of each residential unit with one year free 
Car Club membership. 

 
 

In the event that the Section 106 Agreement is not completed  
 
9.3 In the event that the Section 106 agreement is not completed to the satisfaction 

of the Local Planning Authority and/or the applicant does not agree an 
extension of time for the determination of the planning application, delegate to 

Page 41



 
 

the Planning Development Manager in consultation with the Chairman of the 
Planning Committee the following: -  

 
9.4 REFUSE the planning application for the following reasons:  
 

1) The development fails to provide a satisfactory provision of affordable 
housing to meet the Borough’s housing needs, contrary to Policy HO3 of the 
Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 and Section 5 of the NPPF 2021. 
 

2) The proposal fails to provide sustainable transport measures and is 
therefore contrary to Policy CC2 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 
2009 and Section 9 of the NPPF 2021. 

 
9.5 (B) In the event that the Section 106 agreement is completed to the 

satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority; GRANT subject to the following 
conditions:- 

1.  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of two years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: - This condition is required by Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act, 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans and drawings:  
 

CRO-PR2b-1D; CRO-PR2b-2D; CRO-PR2b-3D; CRO-PR2b-4D; CRO-
PR2b-5D; CRO-PR2b-6D; CRO-PR2b-9D; CRO-PR2b-10D; CRO-
PR2b-11D received 18 March 202. 
 
CROS-LON2-0; CROS-LON2-1; CROS-LON2-2; CROS-LON2-3; 
CROS-LON2-4; CROS-LON2-5; CROS-LON2-6; CROS-LON2-7; 
CROS-LON2-8; CROS-LON2-9; CROS-LON2-10 received 19 
November 2021. 
 
CROS-EX-01; CROS-EX-02; S19/7407/01; S19/7407/02 received 19 
November 2021. 
 
21-1010-Landscape Masterplan-Ground Floor received 19 November 
2021. 
 
CRO-PRa-1D; CRO-PRa-2D; CRO-PRa-3D; CRO-PRa-4D; CRO-PRa-
5D; CRO-PRa-6D; CRO-PRa-7D; CRO-PRa-8D; CRO-PRa-9D; CRO-
PRa-12D; CRO-PRa-13D; CRO-PRa-14D; CRO-PRa-15D received 18 
March 2022. 
 

3.   The construction of the buildings hereby permitted shall not commence 
until a survey report detailing existing ground conditions of the site shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Where made ground or contamination is encountered a scheme to 
investigate, assess and remediate contamination risks shall be agreed 

Page 42



 
 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall be carried out in 
accordance with the agreed details and timetable. 

 
Reason:- To protect the amenities of future residents and the 
environment from the effects of potentially harmful substances, in 
accordance with policies SP6 and EN15 of the Spelthorne Borough Core 
Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 2009. 

 
4.  Prior to the first use or occupation of the development, and on 

completion of the agreed contamination remediation works, a validation 
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried 
out shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
Reason: - To protect the amenities of future residents and the 
environment from the effects of potentially harmful substances. 

 
5. No development shall commence until a Demolition and Construction 

Transport/Environmental Management Plan, to include details of: 
 

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors 
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials 
(c) storage of plant and materials 
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management) 
(e) provision of boundary hoarding behind any visibility zones 
(f) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway 
(g) before and after construction condition surveys of the highway and 
a commitment to fund the repair of any damage caused 
(h) on-site turning for construction vehicles or equivalent traffic 
management 
(i) dust suppression measures 

 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented during the 
demolition and construction of the development. 
 
Reason: - This condition is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and in order to protect local air quality. 

 
6. The construction of the development shall not commence until details of 

the design of a surface water drainage scheme has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The design must 
satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with the national Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial 
Statement on SuDS.  Those details shall include:  

 

a) The results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE 
Digest: 365 and confirmation of groundwater levels. 
 

b) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the 
1 in 30 & 1 in 100 (+40% allowance for climate change) storm events, 

Page 43



 
 

during all stages of the development. The final solution should follow 
the principles set out in the approved drainage strategy. Associated 
discharge rates and storage volumes shall be provided using a 
maximum discharge rate of 2 l/s. 

 

c)  Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a 
finalised drainage layout detailing the location of drainage 
elements, pipe diameters, levels, and long and cross sections of 
each element including details of any flow restrictions and 
maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, inspection chambers 
etc.). Confirmation is required of a 1m unsaturated zone from the 
base of any proposed soakaway to the seasonal high groundwater 
level and confirmation of half-drain times. 

 

d)  A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than 
design events or during blockage) and how property on and off site 
will be protected from increased flood risk. 

 

e)  Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance 
regimes for the drainage system.  

 

f)  Details of how the drainage system will be protected during 
construction and how runoff (including any pollutants) from the 
development site will be managed before the drainage system is 
operational.  

 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed 
surface water drainage scheme. 

 
Reason: To ensure the design meets the technical stands for SuDS and 
the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site. 

 
7. Prior to first occupation, a verification report carried out by a qualified 

drainage engineer must be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority to demonstrate that the Sustainable Urban Drainage 
System has been constructed as per the agreed scheme. This must 
include the details of any management company and state the national 
grid reference of any key drainage elements (surface water attenuation 
devices/areas, flow restriction devices and outfalls), and confirm any 
defects have been rectified.   

 
Reason: To ensure the Sustainable Drainage System is built to the 
approved designs. 

 
8.  No development above damp-proof course level shall take place until 

details of the materials to be used for the external surfaces of the 
buildings and other external surfaces of the development are submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall then be constructed in accordance with the approved materials 
and detailing. 

 

Page 44



 
 

Reason:- To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the appearance of the development and the visual amenities and 
character of the locality, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of 
the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan 
Document 2009. 

 
9.  Following construction of any groundwork and foundations, no 

construction of development above damp proof course level shall take 
place until a report has been submitted to and agreed by the Local 
Planning Authority which includes details and drawings demonstrating 
how at least 10% of the energy requirements generated by the 
development as a whole will be achieved utilising renewable energy 
methods and showing in detail the estimated sizing of each of the 
contributing technologies to the overall percentage.  The detailed report 
shall identify how renewable energy, passive energy and efficiency 
measures will be generated and utilised for each of the proposed 
buildings to meet collectively the requirement for the scheme.  The 
agreed measures shall be implemented with the construction of each 
building and thereafter retained. 

 
Reason:- To ensure that the development is built in accordance with the 
submitted renewable energy details and is sustainable and complies with 
Policy SP7 and CC1 of the Spelthorne Development Plan Core Strategy 
and Policies DPD. 

 
10. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless 

and until the existing southern access from the site to Crossways has 
been permanently closed and any kerbs, verge, footway, fully 
reinstated. 
 
Reason: - This condition is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and accord with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021 and Policies CC2 and CC3 of the Core Strategy and 
Policies Development Plan Document February 2009. 

 
11. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless 

and until the proposed modified vehicular access to Crossways has 
been designed and constructed to facilitate the safe crossing of 
pedestrians in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Reason: - This condition is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and accord with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021 and Policies CC2 and CC3 of the Core Strategy and 
Policies Development Plan Document February 2009. 

 
12. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless 

and until the facilities for the secure parking of bicycles within the 
development site have been provided in accordance with the approved 

Page 45



 
 

plans. Thereafter the said approved facilities shall be retained and 
maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: - The above condition is required in recognition of Section 9 
(Promoting Sustainable Transport) of the NPPF. 

 
13. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless 

and until space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the 
approved plans for vehicles to be parked and for vehicles to turn so that 
they may enter and leave the site in forward gear. Thereafter the 
parking and turning areas shall be retained and maintained for their 
designated purposes. 
 
Reason: - This condition is required in order that the development 
should not prejudice highway safety, nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users, and accord with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021 and Policies CC2 and CC3 of the Core Strategy and 
Policies Development Plan Document February 2009. 

 
14. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless 

and until all of the parking spaces within the site are provided with a 
fast charge socket (current minimum requirement: 7kw Mode 3 with 
Type 2 connector - 230v AC 32 amp single phase dedicated supply), 
and thereafter retained and maintained to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: - The above condition is required in recognition of Section 9 
(Promoting Sustainable Transport) of the NPPF. 

 

15. Before the development is first occupied,  
 

• Details shall be submitted for the approval of the Local Planning 
Authority of on-site mitigation measures (to include mechanical 
whole dwelling ventilation to all properties) with the air intakes 
located at high level away from the direction of adjacent sources of 
air pollution and with consideration of the prevailing wind direction 
from such sources, to protect the occupiers of the development 
from poor air quality. The mechanical ventilation system must 
incorporate adequate filtration/treatment to be effective against the 
ingress of roadside air pollutants to the dwellings. The development 
shall not be first occupied until those mitigation measures have 
been provided and are operational.  

 

• Details shall be submitted for the approval of the Local Planning 
Authority of the location of the air intakes and the complete 
specification and maintenance regime for the equipment, which 
must be established and in place before the development is first 
occupied.  The equipment shall thereafter be retained and 
maintained in accordance with the approved details.  

 
Reason:- To protect the future occupants from poor air quality. 

 

Page 46



 
 

16. Prior to the first occupation of the buildings hereby approved, noise 
mitigation measures shall be fully implemented in accordance with the 
recommendations in paragraphs 5.05 – 5.06 of the W.A. Hines & 
Partners External/Internal Noise Assessment dated 21 September 
2020. 

 
 Reason:- To protect the amenity of residents from external noise. 

 
17. Details of a scheme of both soft and hard landscaping works shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to first occupation of any part of the development hereby 
approved. The approved scheme of tree and shrub planting shall be 
carried out prior to the first occupation of the buildings. The planting so 
provided shall be maintained as approved for a period of 5 years, such 
maintenance to include the replacement in the current or next planting 
season whichever is the sooner, of any trees or shrubs that may die, 
are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, with others of 
similar size and species. 

 
Reason:- To minimise the loss of visual amenity occasioned by the 
development and to enhance the proposed development. 
 

18. Before the first occupation of any part of the development, a landscape 
management plan including long-term design objectives, management 
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The landscape management plan shall be carried out as 
approved.  

 
Reason:- To minimise the loss of visual amenity occasioned by the 
development and to enhance the proposed development. 

 
19.  Prior to the first occupation of the buildings, details of the proposed 

refuse and recycling facilities shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The refuse and recycling facilities 
shall be implemented in accordance with the agreed details before the 
first occupation of the buildings and retained thereafter. 

 
Reason:- To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the enjoyment by neighbouring occupiers of their properties and the 
appearance of the locality, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of 
the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan 
Document 2009. 

 
20. Prior to the first occupation of the buildings hereby permitted details 

including a technical specification of all proposed external lighting shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The agreed external lighting shall be implemented prior to the first 
occupation of the buildings and shall at all times accord with the 
approved details. 

Page 47



 
 

Reason:- To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties and in the 
interest of security and wildlife. 

 
21. There shall be no raising of existing ground levels on the site within the 

area liable to flood, other than in accordance with the approved details. 
 
 Reason:- To prevent the increased risk of flooding due to impedance of 

flood flows and reduction in flood storage capacity in accordance with 
policies SP1, SP7 and LO1 of the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy 
and Policies Development Plan Document 2009. 

 
21. All spoil and building materials stored on site before and during 

construction shall be removed from the area of land liable to flood upon 
completion. 

 
Reason:- To prevent the increased risk of flooding due to impedance of 
flood flows and reduction of flood storage capacity in accordance with 
policies SP1, SP7 and LO1 of the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy 
and Policies Development Plan Document 2009. 

 
22 No construction of the buildings above damp-proof course level shall 

take place until a detailed biodiversity net gain assessment to 
demonstrate a measurable biodiversity net gain and how this gain will be 
secured is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The agreed biodiversity net gain measures shall be 
implemented prior to the occupation of the development. 
 
Reason:- To ensure that the proposed development achieves a 
measurable level of biodiversity net gain. 

 
23.    Prior to the occupation of the building(s), a scheme to provide bird boxes 

and bat boxes/tubes on the site shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed scheme shall be 
implemented before the building(s) is occupied and thereafter maintained. 

 
Reason:- To encourage wildlife on the site. 

 
24 Prior to the occupation of the development, details of a scheme of the 

means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority indicating the positions, design, materials 
and type of boundary treatment to be erected.  The boundary treatment 
shall be completed before the building(s)/use is/are 
occupied.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details and maintained as approved. 

 
Reason:- To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the enjoyment by neighbouring occupiers of their properties and the 
appearance of the locality in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of 
the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan 
Document 2009. 

 
 

Page 48



 
 

 
 
 
Informatives 
 

1. Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may 
be required during its construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant’s 
attention to the requirement within the British Standard Code of Practice for 
the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before 
erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained further 
in Advice Note 4, ‘Cranes’ (available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf). 
 

2. If proposed site works affect an Ordinary Watercourse, Surrey County Council 
as the Lead Local Flood Authority should be contacted to obtain prior written 
Consent. More details are available on the website. If proposed works result 
in infiltration of surface water to ground within a Source Protection Zone the 
Environment Agency will require proof of surface water treatment to achieve 
water quality standards. If there are any further queries please contact the 
Flood Risk Asset, Planning, and Programming team via 
SUDS@surreycc.gov.uk. Please use our reference number in any future 
correspondence. 
 

3. The applicant should give careful consideration to the NOx and Particulate 
Matter emissions of any backup generators that will be installed and the 
location of such equipment in relation to nearby receptors at height, the 
intakes for the mechanical ventilation system, and the frequency of testing. 
The applicant should be informed that some generators require permitting by 
the Environment Agency (see https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-
generator-when-you-need-a-permit). Equipment that does not require a permit 
is still subject to restrictions on testing, you must not carry out more than 50 
hours testing a year for each backup generator. For each backup generator, 
you must record the number of hours you test during the year. Temporary 
generators and mobile plant are also subject to controls where they meet 
specific criteria (see text given on mobile generators 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-generator-when-you-need-a-
permit#excluded-generators). 
 

4. The applicant should consider installing appropriate signage to discourage 
reverse parking up to the windows of ground floor flats and adjacent to play 
areas, in order to protect the air quality for the ground floor residents and 
children using the play areas. 

 
5. A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be required 

for discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge made without 
a permit is deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions 
of the Water Industry Act 1991. We would expect the developer to 
demonstrate what measures he will undertake to minimise groundwater 
discharges into the public sewer. Permit enquiries should be directed to 
Thames Water’s Risk Management Team by telephoning 020 3577 9483 or 
by emailing trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk . Application forms should be 

Page 49

http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf
http://www.aoa.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Advice-Note-4-Cranes-2016.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-generator-when-you-need-a-permit#excluded-generators
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-generator-when-you-need-a-permit#excluded-generators


 
 

completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk. Please refer to the 
Wholsesale; Business customers; Groundwater discharges section. 

 
6. Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted in all 

car parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of 
petrol / oil interceptors could result in oil-polluted discharges entering local 
watercourses. 
 

7. Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m 
head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it 
leaves Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this 
minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development. 
 

8. The developer is advised that as part of the detailed design of the highway 
works required by the above conditions, the County Highway Authority may 
require necessary accommodation works to street lights, road signs, road 
markings, highway drainage, surface covers, street trees, highway verges, 
highway surfaces, surface edge restraints and any other street 
furniture/equipment. 
 

9. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry 
out any works on the highway or any works that may affect a drainage 
channel/culvert or water course. The applicant is advised that a permit and, 
potentially, a Section 278 agreement must be obtained from the Highway 
Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, 
carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. All works on the 
highway will require a permit and an application will need to submitted to the 
County Council's Street Works Team up to 3 months in advance of the 
intended start date, depending on the scale of the works proposed and the 
classification of the road. Please see: http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-
transport/road-permits-and-licences/the-traffic-mana gement-permit-scheme. 
The applicant is also advised that Consent may be required under Section 23 
of the Land Drainage Act 1991. Please see: 
www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-
community-safety/f looding-advice. 
 

10. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge 
developers for damage caused by excessive weight and movements of 
vehicles to and from a site. The Highway Authority will pass on the cost of any 
excess repairs compared to normal maintenance costs to the 
applicant/organisation responsible for the damage. 
 

11. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried 
from the site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned 
wheels or badly loaded vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, where 
possible, to recover any expenses incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing 
highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent offenders (Highways Act 1980 
Sections 131, 148, 149). 
 

12. It is the responsibility of the developer to ensure that the electricity supply is 
sufficient to meet future demands and that any power balancing technology is 
in place if required. Please refer to: 

Page 50



 
 

http://www.beama.org.uk/resourceLibrary/beama-guide-to-electric-vehicle-
infrastructure.ht ml for guidance and further information on charging modes 
and connector types. 
 

13. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the ACPO/Home Office Secured by 
Design (SBD) award scheme, details of which can be viewed at 
www.securedbydesign.com.  

 
14. You are advised that the Council will expect the following measures to be 

taken during any building operations to control noise, pollution and parking: 
a) Work that is audible beyond the site boundary should only be 

carried out between 08:00hrs to 18:00hrs Monday to Friday, 
08:00hrs to 13:00hrs Saturday and not at all on Sundays or any 
Public and/or Bank Holidays; 

b) The quietest available items of plant and machinery should be used 
on site. Where permanently sited equipment such as generators are 
necessary, they should be enclosed to reduce noise levels; 

c) Deliveries should only be received within the hours detailed in (a) 
above; 

d) Adequate steps should be taken to prevent dust-causing nuisance 
beyond the site boundary. Such uses include the use of hoses to 
damp down stockpiles of materials, which are likely to generate 
airborne dust, to damp down during stone/slab cutting; and the use 
of bowsers and wheel washes; 

e) There should be no burning on site; 

f) Only minimal security lighting should be used outside the hours 
stated above; and 

g) Building materials and machinery should not be stored on the 
highway and contractors' vehicles should be parked with care so as 
not to cause an obstruction or block visibility on the highway. 

Further details of these noise and pollution measures can be obtained 
from the Council's Environmental Health Services Unit. In order to meet 
these requirements and to promote good neighbourliness, the Council 
recommends that this site is registered with the Considerate Constructors 
Scheme (www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration). 

 
15. The applicant is advised that the essential requirements for an acceptable 

communication plan forming part of a Method of Construction Statement are 
viewed as: 

a. how those likely to be affected by the site's activities are identified and 
how they will be informed about the project, site activities and 
programme;  

b. how neighbours will be notified prior to any noisy/disruptive work or of 
any significant changes to site activity that may affect them;  

c. the arrangements that will be in place to ensure a reasonable 
telephone response during working hours;  

d. the name and contact details of the site manager who will be able to 
deal with complaints; and   

Page 51

http://www.securedbydesign.com/
http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/site-registration


 
 

e. how those who are interested in or affected will be routinely advised 
regarding the progress of the work. Registration and operation of the 
site to the standards set by the Considerate Constructors Scheme 
(http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/) would help fulfil these requirements. 

 
16. The applicant should be mindful to follow best practice dust control measures 

during demolition, earthworks, and construction to prevent excessive dust 
emissions. 
 

17. Surrey Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) would strongly recommend that 
consideration is given to the installation of AWSS (ie; Sprinklers, Water Mist 
etc) as part of a total fire protection package to: 

• protect life; 

• protect property, heritage, the environment and our climate; 

• help promote and sustain business continuity; and 

• permit design freedoms and encourage innovative, inclusive and 
sustainable architecture. 

 
The use of AWSS can add significant benefit to the structural protection of 
buildings in the event of a fire. Other benefits include supporting business 
recovery and continuity if a fire happens. 

 
18. The applicant is advised to take action to ensure that the development activities 

such as vegetation or site clearance are timed to avoid the bird nest season of 
early March to August inclusive. 

 
19. In assessing this application, officers have worked with the applicant in a 

positive, creative and proactive manner consistent with the requirements of 
the NPPF.  This includes the following – 

 
a. Provided or made available pre application advice to seek to resolve 
problems before the application was submitted and to foster the delivery of 
sustainable development. 
b. Provided feedback through the validation process including information on 
the website, to correct identified problems to ensure that the application was 
correct and could be registered. 
c. Have proactively communicated with the applicant through the process to 
advise progress, timescale or recommendation. 
 

20. The applicant is advised to design the new housing as wheelchair accessible 
that meets Building Regulation M4(3) and M4(2). 
 

21. The applicant is advised to consider a new CCTV system to help reduce fear 
of crime and crime and disorder matters.    

 
 

Page 52

http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/


2

3

M3

A316

Site

Warehouse

PH

SL

The Summit

St
ai

ne
s 

R
es

er
vo

irs
 A

qu
ed

uc
t

1a

145

TCB

Works

Police

ESS

Subway

ESS

A316

A316

Subway

ESS

Works

Warehouse

1a

S
ubw

ay

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100024284. ¯Scale: 1:2,500

20/01555/FUL - Land To The North Of Hanworth Road, (Lok N Store And
Johnson And Johnson), Sunbury On Thames TW16 5LN

Page 53

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



RENAULT
RENAULT

A316 SLIP ROAD

Signage to be agreed with
tenant and subject to separate
planning application

PROPOSED UNIT 01

GROUND FLOOR
+12.050 FFL

FIRST FLOOR
+15.550 FFL

SECOND FLOOR
+18.550 FFL

THIRD FLOOR
+21.550 FFL

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006

FE door
Smoke vents to
staircore included
within glazing
system

Horizontally laid plank
cladding

SITE BO
UN

D
A

RY

Curtain wall glazing, with
spandrel panels

SIGNAGE

38345

1
6
4
8
1

1
4
2
9
3

UNIT 01

UNIT 02

GROUND FLOOR
+12.100 FFL

FIRST FLOOR
+15.600 FFL

SECOND FLOOR
+18.600 FFL

THIRD FLOOR
+21.600 FFL

1
2

5
0
0

12.5m CLEAR TO U/S OF HAUNCH

PPC Aluminium RWP

PPC Aluminium gutter

Public access loading
doors, and stainless steel
goalpost protection,
colour White, RAL 9003

GROUND FLOOR
+12.100 FFL

u/s HAUNCH

RENAULT RENAULT

FIRST FLOOR
+15.800 FFL

1
2

5
0
0

PROPOSED UNIT 01PROPOSED UNIT 02

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006

FE doorService / FE
door

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006

Curtain wall glazing, with
spandrel panels

Canopy to customer
loading bays

CAR PARK

Canopy over entrance

Canopy over
service docks

5
5
0
0

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

Signage to be agreed with
tenant and subject to separate
planning application

Signage to be agreed with
tenant and subject to separate
planning application

5
5
0
0

SIGNAGE

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
colour white

Canopy to
loading bay

Signage to be agreed with
tenant and subject to separate
planning application

Curtain
wall
glazing

Loading doors, and
stainless steel goalpost
protection, colour White,
RAL 9003

SIGNAGESIGNAGESIGNAGE

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006

Built up vertical cladding
system, RAL 7016, profile
TBC

56081
61516

1
4
2
9
3

1
6
4
8
1

1
6
4
8
1

RENAULT

A316 SLIP ROADSERVICE AEA PROPOSED UNIT 02

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006

Horizontally laid
plank cladding

u/s HAUNCH

RENAULT

1
6
4
8
1

43400

Rev Date Description Rev By Chk'd By

A Unit 1 stairwell glazing amended to suit floor plans CM IP31.07.20

 www.harrispartnership.com

CAD file reference

Status

Project Title

Scale

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  S  

Client

Rev

Drawing Size

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  S  

Drawing Title

Job-Dwg No Rev

Reading, RG1 5BY   
101 London Road,  

t.  01908 211577     
Newport Pagnell, MK16 8AB

Wakefield,  WF1 3QA     
2 St. Johns North,

The Old Rectory,  79 High Street,
t.  0161 2388555     
Manchester, M1 2HG
Carvers Warehouse, 77 Dale Street,

London, W1U 1JJ   
10 Gees Court, St Christophers Place,

t.  01924 291800     

t.  0118 9507700     

t. 0207 4091215

Reading, RG1 5BY   
101 London Road,  

t.  01908 211577     
Newport Pagnell, MK16 8AB

Wakefield,  WF1 3QA     
2 St. Johns North,

The Old Rectory,  79 High Street,
t.  0161 2388555     
Manchester, M1 2HG
Carvers Warehouse, 77 Dale Street,

London, W1U 1JJ   
10 Gees Court, St Christophers Place,

t.  01924 291800     

t.  0118 9507700     

t. 0207 4091215

Drawn ByDate Checked 

A1

Diageo Pension Trust Ltd

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 02

PROPOSED DEVLOPMENT

HANWORTH ROAD
SUNBURY-ON-THAMES
TW16 5LN

16625-105 G

1:200

PLANNING

JULY 2020 CM IP

J:\16000-17000\16625 Hanworth Rd\17.0 Drawings\001 Series-Feasibility

This drawing is copyright and may not be reproduced in whole or part without written authority. 
The Harris Group Ltd does not accept liability for any deviation from our drawings or specification.

Do not scale off this drawing.

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 02
Scale 1:200 @ A1

00 m2 4 6 8 10

SCALE 1:200

05_PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION [UNIT 1 GABLE END]
Scale 1:200

06_PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION [UNIT 2 GABLE END]
Scale 1:200

05

ELEVATION KEY PLAN
Not to Scale

04_PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION
Scale 1:200

04

06

B Unit 2 height increased CM IP10.08.20
C Unit 2 height amended CM IP11.08.20
D Unit 01 signage amended CM IP14.08.20
E Unit 01 cladding amended CM IP11.11.20
F Plank cladding reference amended CM IP25.11.20
G Dimensions added to elevations CM IP25.01.21

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1
2
5
0
0

u/s HAUNCH

FIRST FLOOR
+15.700 FFL

RENAULT

A316 SLIP ROAD & SITE ACCESS CAR PARKPROPOSED UNIT 02

Horizontal plank claddingGlazing with spandrel
panels

SIGNAGE

Signage to be agreed with
tenant and subject to separate
planning applicationOUTLINE OF UNIT 01 IN BACKGROUND

SIGNAGE

Signage to be agreed with
tenant and subject to separate
planning application

Entrance Canopy over
entrance

SITE BO
UN

D
A

RY

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006

Built up vertical cladding
system, RAL 7016, profile
TBC

43400

GROUND FLOOR
+12.100 FFL

FIRST FLOOR
+15.600 FFL

SECOND FLOOR
+18.600 FFL

THIRD FLOOR
+21.600 FFL

1
2

5
0

0

12.5m CLEAR TO U/S OF HAUNCH

5
5

0
0

PROPOSED UNIT 01

SITE BO
UN

D
A

RY

A316 SLIP ROAD

Outline of Unit 02 in
background

Access route through to
Unit 01 car park

Curtain wall glazing,
with spandrel panels

Existing landscaping
buffer to adjacent

highways

Glazed entrance
doors

5m clear height canopy to
customer loading bays

Signage to be agreed with
tenant and subject to separate
planning application

Horizontally laid plank
cladding

Canopy to entrance

SIGNAGE

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
colour white

SIGNAGE

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006

Vertically laid plank
cladding

23345

1
6

4
8

1

1
4

2
9

3

Road Level
Raised landscaping level

GROUND FLOOR
+12.100 FFL

FIRST FLOOR
+15.600 FFL

SECOND FLOOR
+18.600 FFL

THIRD FLOOR
+21.600 FFL

1
2
5
0

0

GROUND FLOOR
+12.100 FFL

u/s HAUNCH

PROPOSED UNIT 02PROPOSED UNIT 01 NEW ACCESS

FE doorFE doorFE door

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006Horizontal plank cladding

Horizontal plank cladding

2.1m high fence Line of 2.1m
high fence

Line of 1.2m weld
mesh fence

Built up vertical cladding
system, RAL 7016, profile
TBC

Horizontal plank cladding

SIGNAGE

Signage to be agreed with
tenant and subject to separate
planning application

SIGNAGE

Curtain wall glazing
with spandrel
panels

Signage to be agreed with
tenant and subject to separate
planning application

Smoke vents to
staircore included
within glazing
system

FIRST FLOOR
+15.800 FFL

Horizontal plank cladding

Glazing with
spandrel panels

Composite cladding
panel, laid horizontally,
RAL 9006

1
6
4
8
1

1
6
4
8
1

56081
61516

UNIT 01

UNIT 02

Rev Date Description Rev By Chk'd By

A Elevations updated following comments from Unit 01
tenant

CM IP07.07.20

 www.harrispartnership.com

CAD file reference

Status

Project Title

Scale

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  S  

Client

Rev

Drawing Size

A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  S  

Drawing Title

Job-Dwg No Rev

Reading, RG1 5BY   
101 London Road,  

t.  01908 211577     
Newport Pagnell, MK16 8AB

Wakefield,  WF1 3QA     
2 St. Johns North,

The Old Rectory,  79 High Street,
t.  0161 2388555     
Manchester, M1 2HG
Carvers Warehouse, 77 Dale Street,

London, W1U 1JJ   
10 Gees Court, St Christophers Place,

t.  01924 291800     

t.  0118 9507700     

t. 0207 4091215

Reading, RG1 5BY   
101 London Road,  

t.  01908 211577     
Newport Pagnell, MK16 8AB

Wakefield,  WF1 3QA     
2 St. Johns North,

The Old Rectory,  79 High Street,
t.  0161 2388555     
Manchester, M1 2HG
Carvers Warehouse, 77 Dale Street,

London, W1U 1JJ   
10 Gees Court, St Christophers Place,

t.  01924 291800     

t.  0118 9507700     

t. 0207 4091215

Drawn ByDate Checked 

A1

Diageo Pension Trust Ltd

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 01

PROPOSED DEVLOPMENT

HANWORTH ROAD
SUNBURY-ON-THAMES
TW16 5LN

16625-104 K

1:200

PLANNING

JUNE 2020 CM IP

J:\16000-17000\16625 Hanworth Rd\17.0 Drawings\001 Series-Feasibility

This drawing is copyright and may not be reproduced in whole or part without written authority. 
The Harris Group Ltd does not accept liability for any deviation from our drawings or specification.

Do not scale off this drawing.

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS 01
Scale 1:200 @ A1

00 m2 4 6 8 10

SCALE 1:200

01_PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION [FACING A316 SLIP ROAD]
Scale 1:200

02_PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION
Scale 1:200

03_PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION
Scale 1:200

01

02

03

ELEVATION KEY PLAN
Not to Scale

B Elevations amended to suit latest GA plans, including
relocation of unit 2 offices

CM IP15.07.20

C Elevations amended to suit comments received from
unit 1 tenant

CM IP22.07.20

D Canopy amended over Unit 1 entrance and stairwell
glazing revised to suit plan layouts

CM IP31.07.20

E Unit 2 height increased CM IP10.08.20

F Unit 2 height amended CM IP11.08.20
G Unit 01 signage amended CM IP14.08.20
H Unit 01 cladding amended CM IP11.11.20
J Plank cladding reference amended CM IP25.11.20
K Dimensions added to elevations CM IP25.01.21

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Planning Committee 

27 April 2022 

 
 

Application No. 20/01555/FUL 

Site Address Land to the north of Hanworth Road (Lok’n’Store and Johnson & 
Johnson), Sunbury 

Applicant Diageo Pension Trust Ltd 

Proposal Demolition of existing buildings and structures and redevelopment of the 
site to include the erection of two new commercial buildings. Unit 1 to be 
Class B8 use and Unit 2 to be for flexible use within Classes B2, B8 
and/or light industrial (Class E). A revised junction layout (A316 slip 
lane) and associated parking, servicing, landscaping and access and 
infrastructure works 

Officers Paul Tomson/Drishti Patel 

Ward Sunbury Common 

Call in details N/A 

Application Dates 
Valid: 18/12/2020 Expiry: 19/03/2021 

Target: Extension of 
time agreed 29.04.2022 

Executive 
Summary 

This planning application proposes the demolition of the existing 
Johnson & Johnson and Lok’n’Store buildings and the redevelopment of 
the site to provide two new commercial buildings, together with a revised 
junction layout onto the A316 slip road, associated car parking, 
servicing, landscaping and other associated works. 

The site is located within a designated Employment Area in the current 
local plan and the principle of redeveloping the site for commercial 
purposes is acceptable. The buildings’ design and scale will be similar to 
the other existing commercial buildings to the east and will comply with 
the requirements of Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 
2009 (CS & P DPD). The impact on the amenity of the nearby residential 
properties to the north-west (on the other side of the Staines Reservoirs 
Aqueduct) is also considered acceptable. 

The changes to the existing access arrangements onto the A316 Trunk 
road have been agreed by National Highways and the impact on 
highway safety is therefore considered acceptable. The level of car 
parking is also considered acceptable. 

Most of the existing trees on the site are to be retained. Additional tree 
planting and other landscaping is to be implemented. It is considered 
that the new planting together with other biodiversity measures will result 

Page 59



 
 

in a net increase in biodiversity in the site. 

Recommended 
Decision 

The application is recommended for approval subject to conditions, as 
set out in section 8 of the report. 

 

MAIN REPORT 

 

1. Development Plan 
 

1.1 The following policies in the Council’s Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 
are considered relevant to this proposal: 

 

- SP1 (Location of Development) 

- LO1 (Flooding) 

- SP3 (Economy and Employment Land Provision) 

- EM1 (Employment Development) 

- SP6 (Maintaining and Improving the Environment) 

- EN1 (Design of New Development) 

- EN3 (Air Quality) 

- EN8 (Protecting and Improving the Landscape and Biodiversity) 

- EN11 (Development and Noise) 

- EN13 (Light Pollution) 

- EN15 (Development on Land Affected by Contamination) 

- SP7 (Climate Change and Transport) 

- CC1 (Renewable Energy, Energy Conservation and Sustainable 
Construction) 

- CC2 (Sustainable Travel) 

- CC3 (Parking Provision) 

 
1.2 It is also considered that the following Saved Local Plan policies are relevant 

to this proposal: 

- BE26 (Archaeology) 

 
1.3 Also relevant are the following Supplementary Planning 

Documents/Guidance: 
 

- SPG on Parking Standards Updated 2011 
 

1.4 The advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
2021 is also relevant. 
 

Page 60



 
 

1.5 The emerging plan is currently being prepared but at present carries 
negligible weight in any decision making. 

 
 
2. Relevant Planning History 

 
2.1 The site has the following planning history 
 

Ref. No. Proposal Decision and 
Date 

C/76/240 Erection of warehouse measuring 4,009 sq. m 
plus 476.6 sq. m of ancillary office  
accommodation. 
 

Approved 
09/08/1976 

C/77/613 Construction of an additional 554.6 sq m of  
ancillary office accommodation within existing  
building, alterations to north and west elevations 
of building, and provision of revised parking 
layout for 106 cars at distribution estate. 
 

Approved  
28/09/1977 

00/0787 Alterations to elevations [Lok’n’Store] Approved 
19/12/2000 

  
 
3. Description of Current Proposal 
 
3.1 The application relates to the Johnson & Johnson and Lok’n’Store industrial 

buildings which are located on the northern side of Hanworth Road in 
Sunbury. The site is 1.63 hectares and forms part of the existing industrial 
estate that also comprises Costco and the newly built Jaguar Land Rover 
building. Johnson & Johnson is a warehouse with associated offices, whilst 
Lok N Store is a self-storage unit. Both units are reached from the existing 
main access from the A316 (to the south of Lok’n’Store), which also serves 
the other units in the industrial estate. Johnson & Johnson also has a 
secondary access serving a car park further the west. To the rear is an area 
of open land owned by Thames Water that includes the Staines Reservoirs 
Aqueduct. Further to the north and west are houses in Windsor Road, Bingley 
Road, Bryan Close and The Haven. 
 

3.2 The site is located within the urban area and is part of a designated 
Employment Area within the 2009 local plan. The A316 is a Trunk road. There 
is an oak tree located at the rear of the site that is protected by a Tree 
Preservation Order. 
 

3.3 The proposal involves the demolition of the existing buildings and the erection 
of 2 no. new commercial buildings providing a total of 10,439 sq. m (GEA). 
Unit 1 will be located towards the western side of the site and measure 61.5m 
in width, 38.35m in depth and up to 16.5m in height. It will have 7,872 sq. m 
Gross External Area (GEA) configured across 3 levels. The applicant states 
that it is anticipated that the unit will be used for self-storage although 
permission is being sought for a general B8 Use Class which comprises 
storage or distribution uses.   Unit 2 located on the eastern side of the site will 

Page 61



 
 

measure 56.1m in width, 43.4m in depth and up to 16.5m in height. A total of 
2,567 sq. m GEA is proposed. The applicant is seeking a flexible use of either 
Use Class B2 (General Industrial), B8 (Storage and Distribution), or Light 
Industrial purposes in Use Class E.  A total of 51 car parking spaces are 
proposed: 15 no. for Unit 1 and 36 no. for Unit 2. A new road junction is 
proposed off the A316. This will be in a similar location to the existing junction 
and will improve the access/egress for users of all the units on the industrial 
estate. The existing secondary vehicular access to Johnson & Johnson will be 
closed. The servicing yards will be located at the rear of the site. The 
floorspace of both existing buildings is 8275 sq. m which is to be replaced with 
a total of 9870 sq. m floorspace making the increase 1595 sqm.  
 

3.4 The new buildings will be faced in a mix of cladding and areas of glazing. The 
street scene elevations of both buildings will be faced in two different colours 
of cladding separated by a ‘diagonal splay’, with the lower sections faced in 
pale brown horizontal ‘plank cladding’, and the upper sections faced pale grey 
‘composite cladding’ panels. There will also be areas of darker grey vertical 
cladding around the entrance area of Unit 2. 
 

3.5 A landscape scheme has been submitted with the application. Most of the 
existing trees on the site are to be retained. A number of new trees and other 
planting is proposed. 

 
 
4. Consultations 

 
4.1 The following table shows those bodies consulted and their response. 
 

Consultee Comment 

County Highway Authority No objection 

Environment Agency 
Do not wish to comment on application due to 
the site not being in a high risk flood zone. 

National Highways No objection subject to conditions 

Sustainability Officer 
No objection to the renewable energy 
facilities (air source heat pumps and 
photovoltaic solar panels) 

Local Lead Flood 
Authority (Surrey County 
Council) 

No objection subject to conditions and an 
informative 

County Archaeologist No objection  

Crime Prevention Officer 
Condition or informative to be attached 
relating to Secured by Design process 

Surrey Wildlife Trust No comments received 

Tree Officer No objection subject to conditions 

Thames Water 
No objection subject to a condition and 
informatives. 

National Grid No comments received 

Page 62



 
 

Environmental Health 
(Contaminated land) 

No objection subject to conditions 

Environmental Health  

(Air Quality) 

No objection subject to conditions 

Environmental Health 
(Noise) 

No objection subject to conditions  

Environmental Health 
(Lighting) 

No objection in principle.  Details to be 
submitted via a condition.  

London Borough of 
Hounslow 

No objection 

 

 
5. Public Consultation 
 
5.1 27 properties were notified of the planning application.  Furthermore, a 

statutory site notice was displayed and the application was advertised in the 
local press.  
 

5.2 Six Letters of objection and four letters of Representation have been received. 
Reasons for objecting include:- 
 
- Principle of demolition and replacement 
- Tall height which exceeds existing and is overbearing 
- Impact on privacy  
- Increase in noise levels 
- 4.5 metre rear boundary wall should be retained 
- Light pollution 
- Large trees should be retained  
- Storage of hazardous material  
- Junction exceeding capacity due to high levels of demand for Costco 
- Potential smells 
- Interference with TV reception  
- Length of time for construction 
- Use of the service area and working hours 
- Mistakes by drivers looking for Costco going to residential properties 

(Note: this is not a planning matter) 
 
6. Planning Issues 

  
-  Principle of Development 
- Design and appearance 
- Impact on neighbouring residential properties 
-  Traffic generation and impact on adjacent highways 
- Parking 
-  Air Quality 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



 
 

 
 
7. Planning Considerations 

Principle 
 

7.1 Paragraph 81 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should 
help create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. 
Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth 
and productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider 
opportunities for development. 

7.2 Policy EM1 (Employment Development) of the Core Strategy and Policies 
DPD (CS & P DPD) states that the Council will maintain employment 
development by: - 

a) Retaining designated Employment Areas and supporting in principle 
proposals in these areas for employment development.  

b) Encouraging proposals for redevelopment and extensions that enable 
business needs to be met and make the most effective use of available 
employment land. 

c) Refusing proposals that involve a net loss of employment land or 
floorspace in Employment Areas, unless the loss of floorspace forms part 
of a redevelopment that more effectively meets needs for an existing 
business operating from the site, or the loss of employment land is part of 
a mixed use development from the site which results in no net loss of 
employment floorspace, or it can be clearly demonstrated that the 
maintenance of existing levels of employment floorspace on the site is 
unsustainable and unviable in the long term. 

7.3 The site is located within a designated Employment Area and the principle of 
redeveloping the site to provide new commercial buildings is considered 
acceptable. The proposal will involve replacing the existing commercial 
buildings with new buildings of modern standards, which the applicant states 
will better meet the requirements of new and existing businesses in 
Spelthorne. It is relevant to note that the combined floorspace of the two new 
buildings will be significantly greater (1,595 sq. m more) than the floorspace of 
the existing buildings to be demolished. Moreover, the provision of the revised 
access arrangements and the creation of a new roadway and service yards at 
the rear of the site is considered acceptable in principle. 

 
Design and Appearance 
 

7.4 Policy EN1a of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD (CS & P DPD) states that 
the Council will require a high standard in the design and layout of new 
development. Proposals should demonstrate that they will create buildings 
and places that are attractive with their own distinct identity; they should 
respect and make a positive contribution to the street scene and the character 
of the area in which they are situated, paying due regard to the scale, height, 
proportions, building lines, layout, materials and other characteristics of 
adjoining buildings and land.  

Page 64



 
 

 
7.5 The existing two buildings consist of an office/warehouse facility for Johnson 

and Johnson and a self-storage unit for Lok’n’Store. They are industrial in 
appearance and have shallow pitched roofs which are hidden behind 
parapets. The materials include metal cladding, brickwork and strip glazing. 
Directly to the north and west of the site is the Staines Reservoir Aqueduct. 
The Aqueduct has a 10 metres easement area of no build. Beyond the 
aqueduct is a residential area. To the east of the site is a recently constructed 
car dealership for Jaguar Land Rover. This building has a modern appearance 
finished in grey cladding and large areas of glazing. Further to the east is a 
wholesale retail/warehouse unit serving Costco which is constructed of metal 
cladding and with a parapeted roof. The proposed two buildings will be seen 
in context with these other large scale buildings in the surrounding area. 
 

7.6 It is considered that the proposed elevational treatment including the mix of 
two tone grey coloured metal cladding is acceptable in this industrial estate 
context. The cladding is proposed to have two distinct characterisations to 
form a diagonal splay design on the front elevation. Therefore, the higher 
section would have horizontal large panels with thinner horizontal grey panels 
below. The southern elevation would have vertical strip panels with a darker 
grey colour. The proposed front elevation will include substantial areas of 
glazing at ground and first floor levels, which will give the appearance of an 
active frontage and make a positive contribution to the area. 
 

7.7 A 2.1 metre-high fence will be positioned between the two units. A pedestrian 
gate is proposed for direct access to the existing pedestrian route off the A316 
slip road. There will be loading bays behind the two units with a service area 
to be situated to the north of Unit 2 with a two-way service road. This service 
area includes a refuse storage area. A new timber acoustic fence will be 
provided part way along the northern boundary to mitigate against any noise 
transmission to nearby residential properties. Furthermore, a revised site plan 
shows the existing brick wall at the rear boundary of the site is to be retained. 
 

7.8 The front elevations of the units would be staggered with Unit 1 coming further 
forward of Unit 2. However, overall the proposed building line will be set back 
from the A316 road by a similar distance to the neighbouring Costco and 
Jaguar Land Rover buildings and so will not appear visually obtrusive in the 
street scene. The building would be set a minimum of 5.4 metres from the 
south boundary and 12.5 metres to the motorway slip lane. 
 

7.9 There is proposed to be additional soft landscaping in various positions 
around the site including the main entrance and junction area. There would be 
also be soft landscaping and additional trees along the front boundary 
adjacent to the existing pedestrian lane.  
 

7.10 It is considered that the current scheme in terms of its design, scale and 
location is acceptable and will integrate into the vicinity. The proposal is 
considered to comply with Policy EN1 on design and appearance and the 
guidance in the NPPF. 
 
 
 

Page 65



 
 

 
 
Impact on neighbouring residential properties 
 

7.11 Policy EN1b of the CS & P DPD states that new development should achieve 
a satisfactory relationship to adjoining properties avoiding significant harmful 
impact in terms of loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight, or overbearing effect 
due to bulk and proximity or outlook. 
 

7.12 The closest residential properties to the site are Bingley Road and Bryan 
Close situated to the north. Whilst the third party representations comments 
regarding the height of the building are noted, it is considered that an 
objection could not be raised on amenity grounds. The proposed rear 
elevations will be at least 46 metres away from the rear elevations of the 
neighbouring properties which is considered acceptable. There is a 27 metre 
wide strip of land owned by Thames Water which acts as a buffer between the 
application site and the existing residential area to the north. The new building 
will not break a 25 degree line in relation to the neighbouring dwellings. This 
criteria is set out in the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on 
Residential Extensions and New Residential Development 2011 and is used 
to demonstrate that a new residential building will not have an overbearing 
impact. Whilst the proposal is a commercial building, the 25 degree rule in the 
SPD nevertheless provides useful guidance by showing that the proposed 
building will not have an overbearing impact on the nearby residential 
properties. Therefore, it is also considered the windows above the loadings 
bays on the northern elevation of Unit 1 are a sufficient distance from the 
residential properties to have an acceptable impact on privacy.  There are no 
windows on the northern elevation of unit 2. 
 

7.13 The scheme has received 6 objections and 4 letters of representation. The 
concerns of the principle of the proposal; the impact of the height of the 
buildings; the increase in noise levels; light pollution; landscaping and trees; 
impact on traffic have been addressed in the other sections of the report.  
 

7.14 Regarding the remaining points that have not been fully covered, concerns 
have been raised regarding potential smells and storage of hazardous 
materials impacting the residential area. There are not any objections relating 
to smells or hazardous material from Environmental Health and it is not 
considered there to be any significant impact on these properties. Given the 
substantial separation distance between the existing houses and the rear of 
the proposed buildings, with the Thames Water open space in between, it is 
not considered that the proposed development would have a material impact 
on TV reception. There are further concerns which are not considered to be 
material planning considerations including the length of time for construction; 
the type of work being conducted in the service areas and potential confusion 
for drivers looking for Costco coming down residential highways instead.  
 
Traffic generation and impact on adjacent highways 

 
7.15 Policy CC2 of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will seek to secure 

more sustainable travel patterns by only permitting traffic generating 

Page 66



 
 

development where it is or can be made compatible with the transport 
infrastructure in the area taking into account: 

 
(i) number and nature of additional traffic movements, including servicing 

needs, 
 
 (ii) capacity of the local transport network, 
 
 (iii) cumulative impact including other proposed development, 
 
 (iv) access and egress to the public highway, 
 
 (v) highway safety. 
 
7.16 The proposed development is accessed from the A316 Trunk road and 

consequently National Highways was consulted on the application as trunk 
roads fall with its responsibility. The County Highway Authority was also 
consulted. 

 
7.17 With regard to the new access arrangements onto the A316 Trunk Road, 

National Highways (NH) was originally not satisfied with the proposal and had 
been in discussions with the applicant regarding altering the layout.. Amended 
plans have since been submitted and NH has removed the objection on 
highway grounds subject to the imposition of conditions. There was also no 
objection on traffic generation grounds and the NH is satisfied that the 
proposal will not create unacceptable congestion or vehicle queueing at the 
junction. 

 
7.18 The County Highway Authority (CHA) has raised no objection, commenting 

that the adjacent highway is operated by National Highways and is not under 
the jurisdiction of Surrey County Council. The CHA has considered the wider 
impacts of the development on the local highway network and has no 
comments to make. 

 
7.19 Accordingly, the proposed impact on highway safety and traffic generation is 

considered acceptable and complies with the requirements of Policy CC2. 
 
 Parking 
 
7.20 Policy CC3 (Parking Provision) of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will 

require appropriate provision to be made for off-street parking in development 
proposals in accordance with its maximum parking standards.  
 

7.21 The proposal has a total of 51 car parking spaces. The western car parking 
area adjacent to Unit 1 serves 15 car parking spaces with 2 of these as 
disabled spaces. There would be 5 electric charging points and 10 cycle 
hoops (20 spaces).  
 

7.22 The eastern car parking area adjacent to Unit 2 would have 36 car parking 
space with 2 disabled spaces and 7 spaces designated for staff. There would 
be 5 electric charging points and 4 cycle hoops (8 spaces).  The electric 
charging points will be covered by a condition.  

Page 67



 
 

 
7.23 Spelthorne’s Parking Standard’s state that Warehouse (Use Class B8) should 

have 1 car space per 100 sqm floor area, plus a minimum of 1 lorry space per 
200 sqm floor area. However, with regard to Unit 2 and the flexibility to 
potentially use it for Use Class B2 or Use Class E in addition to Use Class B8, 
the demand for car parking is greater than a warehouse use. It is noted that 
these standards are to be applied as maximum rather than minimum 
standards and the proposal complies with the maximum standards.  
Therefore, the parking is considered to be acceptable.  
 
Air Quality 
 

7.24 Policy EN3 of the CS&P DPD seeks to improve air quality within the Borough 
and minimise harm from poor air quality. 
 

7.25 The site is located within the Spelthorne Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMA). The applicant has submitted an Air Quality Constraints and 
Opportunities Appraisal Assessment (AQA), as is required by Policy EN3. The 
Council’s Environmental Health Officer (EHO) has been consulted and has 
raised no objection subject to the imposition of conditions. Therefore, the 
proposal is considered to accord with Policy EN3 on air quality. 
 
Noise 

 
7.26 Policy EN11 of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will seek to minimise 

the adverse impact of noise by requiring developments that generate 
unacceptable noise levels to include measures to reduce noise to an 
acceptable level. 

 
7.27 A noise assessment has been submitted with the planning application, which 

assesses the impact of the development on the residential properties to the 
rear. The two main potential noise sources are from Heavy Good Vehicles 
(HGVs) and mechanical and electrical plant on the site. It is relevant to note 
that there is the existing Staines Reservoirs Aqueduct landscaped buffer 
between the back of the site and the residential properties to the north-west, 
which is at least 28 metres wide. There is also an existing 4.7 metre high brick 
wall along part of the rear boundary that is to be retained. A 1.8 metre high 
acoustic fence is to be installed along the remining rear boundary behind Unit 
2. 

 
7.28 The noise assessment concludes that the proposed development will have 

negligible noise impact on the nearest residential properties. The Council’s 
Environment Heath Officer was consulted on the planning application and has 
raised no objection on noise grounds. Subject to the imposition of conditions 
requiring the installation of the acoustic fence and to control noise from plant, 
the impact from noise is considered acceptable. 
 

Renewable Energy 
 

7.29 Policy CC1 of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will require 
development involving new building exceeding 100m2 to provide at least 10% 

Page 68



 
 

of the energy demand of the development from on-site renewable energy 
sources.   
 

7.30 The applicant’s renewable energy statement demonstrates that this 
development will generate at least 10% of the total energy demand on the 
site, which meets the requirement and therefore complies with the policy. The 
Council’s Sustainability Officer has raised no objection to the proposed 
renewable energy proposals (air source heart pumps and photovoltaic solar 
panels). 
 
Equalities Act 2010 
 

7.31 This planning application has been considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 
and associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to 
have due regard to: 
 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
The question in every case is whether the decision maker has in substance 
had due regard to the relevant statutory need, to see whether the duty has 
been performed. 
 

7.32 The Council’s obligation is to have due regard to the need to achieve these 
goals in making its decisions. Due regard means to have such regard as is 
appropriate in all the circumstances. 

 
7.33 The NPPF defines people with disabilities as individuals that have a physical 

or mental impairment, which has a substantial and long term adverse effects 
on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities.  This can include but is 
not limited to, people with ambulatory difficulties, blindness, learning 
difficulties, autism and mental health needs.  It is considered that it would be 
possible for individuals with disabilities to access the development.   

 
Human Rights Act 1998 
 

7.34 This planning application has been considered against the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 
 

7.35 Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made 
representations) have the right to a fair hearing and to this end full 
consideration will be given to their comments. 
 

7.36 Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and 
family life and a right to the protection of property, i.e. peaceful enjoyment of 

Page 69



 
 

one's possessions which could include a person's home, and other land and 
business assets. 
 

7.37 In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Spelthorne Local Plan 
and the NPPF and all material planning considerations, Officers have 
concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon the applicant/ objectors/ 
residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law 
and is justified in the public interest.  Any restriction of these rights posed by 
the approval of the application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the 
wider benefits of such a decision, is based upon the merits of the proposal, 
and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council under the 
Town & Country Planning Acts. 

 
 Financial Considerations 
 
7.38 Under S155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016, Local Planning Authorities 

are now required to ensure that potential financial benefits of certain 
development proposals are made public when a Local Planning Authority is 
considering whether or not to grant planning permission for planning 
applications which are being determined by the Council’s Planning 
Committee. A financial benefit must be recorded regardless of whether it is 
material to the Local Planning Authority’s decision on a planning application, 
but planning officers are required to indicate their opinion as to whether the 
benefit is material to the application or not.  There are no financial 
contributions be sought as a Section 106 Agreement in this application, nor 
are there any CIL payments applicable. The proposal will generate Business 
Rates payments which is not material a consideration in the determination of 
this proposal.  

 
Other Matters 

 
7.39 Most of the existing trees on the site are to be retained. This includes the 

retention of the Oak tree subject to a Tree Preservation Order that is located 
at the rear of the site. The applicant has submitted a full landscape scheme 
which proposes the planting of a number of new trees, shrubs and new areas 
of landscaping on the site. The Council’s tree officer has raised no objection to 
the proposed scheme. Moreover, it is considered that with the provision of the 
additional landscaping, together with other wildlife improvement measures, 
will result in a net gain in biodiversity on the site. 

 
7.40 The site is located within Flood Zone 1 (greater than 1 in 1000 year chance of 

flooding. As the site is not in a high risk flood zone, the Environment Agency 
has not commented on the scheme. The Lead Local Flood Authority has 
raised no objection to the proposed Sustainable Drainage Scheme. 
Accordingly, the impact on flooding is considered acceptable. 

 
7.41 The applicant has submitted an external lighting scheme which shows that 

there will not be any light spill onto the residential properties towards the rear 
of the site (beyond the aqueduct). A condition is to be imposed requiring final 
details of an external lighting scheme to be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 70



 
 

 
7.42 Accordingly, the application recommended for approval. 
 
8. Recommendation 

 
8.1 GRANT subject to the following conditions:- 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: - This condition is required by Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act, 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans and drawings:  
 
16625-098A; /097A; /102D; /103A; /102A received 18 December 2020 
 
16625-104K; /105G; /109 received 27 January 2021 
 
16625-107D received 05 July 2021 
 
16625-/106E; /121B; /VL_L01E received 11 April 2022 
 
16625-101N received 13 April 2022 

 
Reason: - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper 
planning 

 
3. No development above damp proof course level shall take place until  

details of the materials to be used for the external surfaces of the 
buildings and other external surfaces of the development are submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall then be constructed in accordance with the approved materials 
and detailing. 

 
Reason:- To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the appearance of the development and the visual amenities and 
character of the locality, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of 
the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan 
Document 2009. 

 

4. The construction of the buildings hereby permitted shall not commence 
until a survey report detailing existing ground conditions of the site shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Where made ground or contamination is encountered a 
scheme to investigate, assess and remediate contamination risks shall 
be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and shall be 
carried out in accordance with the agreed details and timetable. 

 

Page 71



 
 

Reason:- To protect the amenities of future occupants and the 
environment from the effects of potentially harmful substances, in 
accordance with policies SP6 and EN15 of the Spelthorne Borough 
Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 2009. 

 
5. Prior to the first use or occupation of the development, and on 

completion of the agreed contamination remediation works, a validation 
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried 
out shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 
Reason:- To protect the amenities of future occupants and the 
environment from the effects of potentially harmful substances. 

 
6. Following construction of any groundwork and foundations, no 

construction of development above damp proof course level shall take 
place until a report has been submitted to and agreed by the Local 
Planning Authority which includes details and drawings demonstrating 
how 10% of the energy requirements generated by the development as 
a whole will be achieved utilising renewable energy methods and 
showing in detail the estimated sizing of each of the contributing 
technologies to the overall percentage.  The detailed report shall 
identify how renewable energy, passive energy and efficiency 
measures will be generated and utilised for each of the proposed 
buildings to meet collectively the requirement for the scheme.  The 
agreed measures shall be implemented with the construction of each 
building and thereafter retained. 

 
Reason:- To ensure that the development is sustainable and complies 
with Policy SP7 and CC1 of the Spelthorne Development Plan Core 
Strategy and Policies DPD. 
  

7. No development shall take place until a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) for the site or relevant part of the site where 
any works are proposed has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority (in consultation with National 
Highways). The CEMP shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  

 

• The proposed construction traffic routes to the site, to be identified 
on a plan;  

• Construction Traffic Management Plan (to include the co-ordination 
of deliveries and plant and materials and the disposing of waste 
resulting from demolition and/or construction so as to avoid undue 
interference with the operation of the public highway, particularly 
during the Monday-Friday AM Peak (0800-0900) and PM Peak 
(1630-1800) periods);  

• an estimate of the daily movement of the construction traffic;  

• the hours of construction work and deliveries;  

• area(s) for the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  

• area(s) for the loading and unloading of plant and materials;  

Page 72



 
 

• area(s) for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing 
the development;  

• details of waste management arrangements;  

• consideration of emissions to air, water and land. Including noise & 
vibration, dust, general discharges and appropriate mitigation 
strategies;  

• the storage of materials and construction waste, including waste 
recycling where possible;  

• Risk Assessments and Method Statements for the works; and  

• contact details of personnel responsible for the construction works.  
 

Reason:- To mitigate any adverse impact from the development on the 
M3, to ensure that the M3 continues to be an effective part of the 
national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with section 
10 of the Highways Act 1980 and to satisfy the reasonable 
requirements of road safety. 
 

8. Prior to first occupation of the development, a travel plan which shall 
include measures to reduce peak hour vehicle trips, together with a 
time-bound programme of implementation, monitoring, regular review 
and update; shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority (in consultation with National Highways).  

 
Reason:- To mitigate any adverse impact from the development on the 
M3, to ensure that the M3 continues to be an effective part of the 
national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with section 
10 of the Highways Act 1980 and to satisfy the reasonable 
requirements of road safety. 
 

9. The development hereby approved should be carried out in accordance 
with the approved Proposed Site Plan 16625-101 Rev N. Any 
subsequent alteration to the size or end use of the site or where 
parking provision is altered should first be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with National 
Highways.  

 
Reason:- To mitigate any adverse impact from the development on the 
M3, to ensure that the M3 continues to be an effective part of the 
national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with section 
10 of the Highways Act 1980 and to satisfy the reasonable 
requirements of road safety. 

 
10. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until a 

Framework Operational Management Plan has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by Local Planning Authority (in consultation with 
National Highways). The development hereby permitted shall then be 
operated in accordance with the agreed plan.  

 
Reason:- To mitigate any adverse impact from the development on the 
M3, to ensure that the M3 continues to be an effective part of the 

Page 73



 
 

national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with section 
10 of the Highways Act 1980 and to satisfy the reasonable 
requirements of road safety. 

 
11. The trees and shrubs shall be planted on the site in accordance with 

the scheme hereby approved, within a period of 12 months from the 
date on which the development hereby permitted is first commenced,  
or such longer period as may be approved by the Local Planning 
Authority, and that the planting so provided shall be maintained as 
approved for a period of 5 years, such maintenance to include the 
replacement in the current or next planting season whichever is the 
sooner, of any trees or shrubs that may die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased, with others of similar size and species, 
unless the Local Planning Authority gives written permission to any 
variation. 

 
Reason:- To minimise the loss of visual amenity occasioned by the 
development and to enhance the proposed development. 
 

12. Before the first occupation of any part of the development, a landscape 
management plan including long-term design objectives, management 
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscaped areas 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The landscape management plan shall be carried out as 
approved.  

 
Reason:- To minimise the loss of visual amenity occasioned by the 
development and to enhance the proposed development. 

 
13. Prior to the occupation of the buildings hereby permitted details 

including a technical specification of all proposed external lighting shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The agreed external lighting shall be implemented prior to the 
occupation of the buildings and shall at all times accord with the 
approved details. 

Reason:- To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties and in 
the interest of security. 

 
14. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of 

the design of a surface water drainage scheme has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The design 
must satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with the national 
Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial 
Statement on SuDS. The required drainage details shall include:  

 
 a)  The results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE 

Digest: 365 and confirmation of groundwater levels.  
  
 b)  Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage 

the 1 in 30 & 1 in 100 (+20% allowance for climate change) storm 
events, during all stages of the development. The final solution 

Page 74



 
 

should follow the principles set out in the approved drainage 
strategy. If infiltration is deemed unfeasible, associated discharge 
rates and storage volumes shall be provided using a maximum 
discharge rate of 5l/s.  

 
 c)  Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a 

finalised drainage layout detailing the location of drainage 
elements, pipe diameters, levels, and long and cross sections of 
each element including details of any flow restrictions and 
maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, inspection chambers 
etc.).  

 
 d)  A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than 

design events or during blockage) and how property on and off site 
will be protected.  

 
 e)  Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance 

regimes for the drainage system.  
 

 f)  Details of how the drainage system will be protected during 
construction and how runoff (including any pollutants) from the 
development site will be managed before the drainage system is 
operational.  

 
Reason: To ensure the design meets the technical stands for SuDS 
and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site. 

  
15. Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report 

carried out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. This must demonstrate that 
the drainage system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme 
(or detail any minor variations), provide the details of any management 
company and state the national grid reference of any key drainage 
elements (surface water attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction 
devices and outfalls). 

 
Reason: To ensure the Sustainable Drainage System is built to the 
approved designs. 

 
16. The wildlife protection measures during the construction and 

operational phases shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 
recommended mitigation measures in Section 6.2 of the Delta Simons 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal July 2020. 
 
Reason:- In the interest of safeguarding wildlife on the site. 

 
17. Prior to the construction of the buildings, a biodiversity enhancement 

scheme to be implemented on the site in line with the 
recommendations in Section 6.2 of the Delta Simons Preliminary 
Ecological Appraisal July 2020 shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The biodiversity enhancement 

Page 75



 
 

measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
scheme and thereafter maintained. 
 
Reason:- To encourage wildlife on the site. 

 
18. Prior to the first occupation of the development full details of the 

acoustic fence to be installed along the north-western rear boundary 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The acoustic fence shall be fully implemented prior to the fist 
occupation of the buildings in accordance with the agreed details and 
thereafter retained. 
 
Reason:- To safeguard the amenity of nearby residential properties 
against noise pollution. 
 

19. The rated noise level from the plant hereby approved shall be at least 
10 dB(A) below the background noise level at the nearest noise 
sensitive property as assessed using the guidance contained within the 
latest BS4142 (2014). 

 
Reason:- To safeguard the amenity of nearby properties. 
 

20. No construction shall take place within 5m of the Thames Water 
strategic water main. Information detailing how the developer intends to 
divert the asset / align the development, so as to prevent the potential 
for damage to subsurface potable water infrastructure, must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority in 
consultation with Thames Water. Any construction must be undertaken 
in accordance with the terms of the approved information. Unrestricted 
access must be available at all times for the maintenance and repair of 
the asset during and after the construction works.  
 
Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground 
strategic water main, utility infrastructure. The works has the potential 
to impact on local underground water utility infrastructure. 

 
21. No goods or articles shall be stored on any part of the application site 

except inside the buildings. 
 

Reason:- To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice 
the appearance of the development and the visual amenities and 
character of the locality, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of 
the Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan 
Document 2009. 

 
22. (a) No demolition, site clearance or building operations shall commence 

until protective fencing consisting of weld mesh panels on a scaffold 
framework as shown in Figure 2 of BS 5837 2012 has been erected 
around each tree or tree group to be retained on the site in accordance 
with details hereby approved and no trenches, pipe runs for services 
and drains shall be sited within that area around the trunk of any tree 
which is to be protected by fencing unless in accordance with details 

Page 76



 
 

hereby approved.  Such fencing shall be maintained during the course 
of the development and no storage of materials or erection of buildings 
shall take place within the fenced area. 

 
(b) The destruction by burning of materials shall not take place within 6 

m (19 ft 8 ins) of the canopy of any tree or tree group to be retained 
on the site or on land adjoining. 

   

Reason:- To prevent damage to the trees in the interest of the visual 
amenities of the area, in accordance with policies SP6 and EN1 of the 
Spelthorne Borough Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan 
Document 2009. 
 

23. Before the development is occupied, details shall be submitted for the 
approval of the Local Planning Authority of onsite mitigation measures 
(to include mechanical ventilation to all areas to be occupied by staff or 
visitors) with the air intakes located at high level away from the 
direction of adjacent sources of air pollution and with consideration of 
the prevailing wind direction from such sources, to protect the 
occupiers of the development from poor air quality. The mechanical 
ventilation system must incorporate adequate filtration/treatment to be 
effective against the ingress of roadside air pollutants. The 
development shall not be occupied until those mitigation measures 
have been provided and are operational.  

  1. Details shall be submitted for the approval of the Local Planning 
Authority of the location of the air intakes and the complete 
specification and maintenance regime for the equipment, which must 
be established and in place before the development is occupied.  The 
equipment shall thereafter be retained and maintained in accordance 
with the approved details. 

 
  Reason: To protect the future occupants from poor air quality as the 

result of the ingress of air subject to emissions from the adjacent A316. 
 
24. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied until 

space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved 
plan for 28 cycles to be parked. Thereafter the parking area shall be 
retained and maintained for their designated purposes.  

 
Reason: To facilitate active travel and in order to safeguard local air 
quality in accordance with The Surrey County Council Vehicular and 
Cycle Parking Guidance.  
 

25. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and 
until at least 10 of the available parking spaces are provided with a fast 

charge socket (current minimum requirement: 7kw Mode 3 with Type 2 
connector - 230 v AC 32 amp single phase dedicated supply) in 
accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason:-.The above condition is required in recognition of Section 9 
(Promoting Sustainable Transport) of the NPPF. 

Page 77



 
 

 
26. Prior to the commencement of development, an Arboricultural Method 

Statement (AMS) in relation to the Oak tree protected by a Tree 
Preservation Order, and other retained trees on the site, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The AMS shall demonstrate that the proposed works will not harm the 
health and condition of the retained trees. The development shall be 
carried out strictly in accordance with the agreed AMS. 

 
Reason:- To safeguard the health and condition of the trees to be 
retained on the site. 

 
Informatives 
 
1. This development involves work to the public highway (strategic road 

network and local road network) that can only be undertaken within the 
scope of a legal Agreement or Agreements between the applicant and 
National Highways (as the strategic highway company appointed by 
the Secretary of State for Transport) and, as necessary and 
appropriate, the Local Highway Authority. Planning permission in itself 
does not permit these works. 
 

2. It is the applicant’s responsibility to ensure that before commencement 
of any works to the public highway, any necessary Agreements under 
the Highways Act 1980 are also obtained (and at no cost to National 
Highways). Works to the highway will normally require an agreement or 
agreements, under Section 278 and Section 38 of the Highways Act, 
with National Highways and the Local Highway Authority. 

 
3. Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be 

required for discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any 
discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal and may result in 
prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. We 
would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures he will 
undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer. 
Permit enquiries should be directed to Thames Water’s Risk 
Management Team by telephoning 020 3577 9483 or by emailing 
trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk . Application forms should be 
completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk. Please refer to the 
Wholsesale; Business customers; Groundwater discharges section.  
 

4. Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted 
in all car parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the 
effective use of petrol / oil interceptors could result in oil-polluted 
discharges entering local watercourses.  
 

5. If proposed works result in infiltration of surface water to ground within 
a Source Protection Zone the Environment Agency will require proof of 
surface water treatment to achieve water quality standards. 

 
6. In accordance with Approved Document S of the Building Regulations 

you will be required to install electric vehicle charging and further 

Page 78

mailto:trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/KEeuCKZq6TJwpoH3LwGn?domain=thameswater.co.uk


 
 

connections to facilitate chargers for additional spaces in the future, in 
accordance with the regulations. 

 
7. Signage is required in all parking and set down/loading areas 

instructing drivers to switch off engines for the prevention of air 
pollution. In accordance with Spelthorne Borough Council Motion 5 
(29/10/2020) declaring Spelthorne an anti-idling zone and to prevent 
new and existing development from contributing to unacceptable levels 
of air pollution and to help improve local environmental conditions in 
accordance with NPPF 170 paragraph e. The development is located 
within the Spelthorne Borough wide Air Quality Management Area. 

 
8. The applicant is advised that the essential requirements for an 

acceptable communication plan forming part of a Method of 
Construction Statement are viewed as:  
(a) how those likely to be affected by the site's activities are 
identified and how they will be informed about the project, site activities 
and programme;  
(b) how neighbours will be notified prior to any noisy/disruptive work 
or of any significant changes to site activity that may affect them;  
(c) the arrangements that will be in place to ensure a reasonable 
telephone response during working hours;  
(d) the name and contact details of the site manager who will be 
able to deal with complaints; and   
(e) how those who are interested in or affected will be routinely 
advised regarding the progress of the work. Registration and operation 
of the site to the standards set by the Considerate Constructors 
Scheme (http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/) would help fulfil these 
requirements. 
 

9. The applicant should give careful consideration to the NOx and 
Particulate Matter emissions of any backup generators that will be 
installed and the location of such equipment in relation to nearby 
receptors, the intakes for the mechanical ventilation system, and the 
frequency of testing. The applicant should be informed that some 
generators require permitting by the Environment Agency see 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-generator-when-you-need-a-
permit. Equipment that does not require a permit is still subject to 
restrictions on testing, you must not carry out more than 50 hours 
testing a year for each backup generator. For each backup generator, 
you must record the number of hours you test during the year. 
 
Temporary generators and mobile plant are also subject to controls 
where they meet specific criteria, see text given on mobile generators 
here;  https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-generator-when-you-
need-a-permit#excluded-generators 
 

10.  It is noted that the heating for the Proposed Development will be 
generated by electric air source heat pumps. There are no energy 
combustion systems (e.g., gas-fired boilers, biomass or Combined 
Heat and Power (CHP)) proposed at the site. The impacts associated 
with emissions from energy combustion systems have therefore not 

Page 79

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-generator-when-you-need-a-permit
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-generator-when-you-need-a-permit
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-generator-when-you-need-a-permit#excluded-generators
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/specified-generator-when-you-need-a-permit#excluded-generators


 
 

been assessed. For this reason the following informative is 
recommended.  
 
Should the design change to include energy combustion systems such 
as gas-fired boilers or Combined Heat and Power (CHP) emissions 
sources in the future then Environmental Health should be consulted 
as the impact of the plant upon air quality would need to be assessed. 
The applicant is advised that under current guidance all gas fired 
boilers should meet a minimum standard of less than 40mgNOx/kWh. 
All gas-fired CHP plant should meet a minimum emissions standard of 
250mgNOx/Nm3 for spark ignition engine - note other limits apply for 
gas turbine or compression ignition engines. Any future building by 
district heating network would also necessitate further air quality 
assessment should it introduce a further emission source. 

 
  

Page 80



 
 
 

 
Major Applications 

 
 
This report is for information only 
 
The list below comprises current major applications which may be brought before Planning Committee for determination.  These 
applications have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for consideration or are recently received 
applications that are not ready to be considered by the Planning Committee.  The background papers for all the applications are 
contained on the Council’s website (Part 1 Planning Register). 
 
All planning applications by Spelthorne Borough Council and Knowle Green Estates will be brought before the Planning Committee 
for determination, regardless of the Planning Officer’s recommendation.  Other planning applications may be determined under 
officers’ delegated powers. 
 
If you wish to discuss any of these applications, please contact the case officer(s) in the first instance. 
 
 

App no Site Proposal 
 

Applicant Case Officer(s) 

20/00344/FUL Thameside 
House 
South Street 
Staines-upon-
Thames 
TW18 4PR  

Demolition of existing office block and erection 
of 140 residential units in two buildings, with 
flexible commercial and retail space, 
associated landscaping, parking and ancillary 
facilities.  

Spelthorne 
Borough Council 

Russ Mounty 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 6



App no Site Proposal 
 

Applicant Case Officer(s) 

20/01555/FUL 
On current 
agenda 

Land to the 
North of 
Hanworth Road 
(Lok N Store 
and Johnson 
and Johnson) 
Sunbury On 
Thames 
TW16 5LN 
 

Demolition of existing buildings and structures 
and redevelopment of the site to include the 
erection of two new warehouse buildings for 
flexible use within Classes B2, B8 and/or light 
industrial (Class E), revised junction layout 
(A316 slip lane) and associated parking, 
servicing, landscaping and access and 
infrastructure works. 
 

Diageo Pension 
Trust Ltd 

Paul 
Tomson/Drishti 
Patel 

21/00947/FUL Cadline House, 
Drake Avenue 

Demolition of existing building and construction 
of new build 2.5 storey residential building 
comprising of 14 flats and 15 under-croft car 
spaces. 

Cadline Ltd Matthew Clapham 

21/01547/FUL Shepperton 
Studios 

Use of 6 acres of land for backlot in 
association with Shepperton studios, including 
the construction of utility buildings, security 
barriers and guard shelters, with associated 
enabling works, access, landscaping, surface 
parking and amended car park access at land 
north of Shepperton Studios" 

Shepperton 
Studios Limited 

Russ Mounty 

21/01801/FUL 
On current 
agenda 

Sunbury Cross 
Ex Services 
Association 
Club 

The demolition of existing Sunbury Ex-
Servicemen's Association Club and 
redevelopment of site including the erection of 
two residential buildings of 5-storeys and 8-
storeys comprising 47 flats with associated car 

SUN EX-21 Ltd Paul Tomson / 
Vanya Popova 

P
age 82



App no Site Proposal 
 

Applicant Case Officer(s) 

parking, cycle storage, landscaping and other 
associated works. 

21/01772/FUL 37 - 45 High 
Street 

Demolition of the former Debenhams Store 
and redevelopment of site to provide 226 
dwellings (Use Class C3) and commercial units 
(Use Class E) together with car and cycle 
parking, hard and soft landscaping, amenity 
space and other associated infrastructure and 
works. 

Future High Street 
Living (Staines) 
Ltd 

Russ Mounty / 
Kelly Walker 

22/00153/RVC Retail 
Warehouse 

Vary Conditions 3 and 12 of Application 
reference: 20/00780/FUL. Subdivision of 
existing retail warehouse and change of use to 
create two Class E to vary phasing of new 
footpath and number of electric vehicle 
charging units.  
commercial units, with reconfiguration of the 
site car park, elevational changes, 
installation of plant equipment, and other 
ancillary works. 

Lidl Great Britain Matthew Clapham 

22/00038/RVC Drake House Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of 
planning permission 19/01070/FUL for the 
partial demolition of existing building and 
erection of an apartment block comprising 14 
no. flats over three floors of accommodation, to 
allow for amendments to replace the permitted 
lift shaft and other alterations. 

Mr Graham Sturdy Kiran Boparai 

P
age 83



App no Site Proposal 
 

Applicant Case Officer(s) 

22/00312/RVC Tesco 
Supermarket 

Removal and variation of conditions 5, 9 and 
12 imposed upon planning permission 
09/00194/RVC to allow for the removal of the 
CHP unit. 

Tesco Stores Ltd Matthew Churchill 

22/00210/FUL 280 Staines 
Road East 

Demolition of existing buildings and 
development of a 47-bedroom care home with 
associated parking, facilities and landscaping 

 Kelly Walker 

 
Esmé Spinks 
Planning Development Manager 
14/04/2022 P

age 84


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Planning application 21/01801/FUL - Sunbury Cross Ex-Services Association Club, Crossways, Sunbury-on-Thames, TW16 7BG
	ITEM A Appendix 1
	ITEM A Appendix 2
	ITEM A appendix 3
	ITEM A REPORT

	5 Planning application 20/01555/FUL - Land to the north of Hanworth Road (Lok'n'Store and Johnson & Johnson
	ITEM B APPENDIX Elevations 1
	ITEM B Appendix Elevations 2
	ITEM B REPORT

	6 Majors report

